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point. And then after Senator Metzenbaum completes, we do need
to send notice to Senator D’Amato because he will then be next fol.
lowed by Senator Bradley.

I appreciate the cooperation of all Members of the Committee
and the staff and also certainly appreciate the cooperation of the
nominee. I know it has been a long day and we appreciate your pa-
tience in remaining with us for the night session,

Senator METZENBAUM, Mr. Chairman, I think you ought to ask
the witness whether or not that is convenient for him, It’s been a
long day for him. If he needs a little more than

Chairman Boren. I thank this display of mercy from Senator
Metzenbaum, let me direct that question to the nominee,

Is 9:00 o’clock too early for you to begin or would you like to be
in a little later than that?

Mr. Gares. I am at the disposal of the Committee.

Chairman Boren. Is that all right with you to start at 9:00
o’clock.

Mr. GATES. Yes sir.

Chairman Boren. We will stand at recess until 9:00 o’clock in
the morning. .

[Thereupon, at 9-03 o’clock p.m., the Committee stood in recess.]

NOMINATION OF ROBERT M. GATES TO BE
DIRECTOR OF CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 1991

U.S. SENATE,
SELECT COMMITTEE ON INTELLIGENCE,
Washington, DC.

The Select Committee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:16 o'clock
a.m., in Room SH-216, Hart Senate Office Building, the Honorable
David L. Boren, Chairman of the Committee, presiding.

Present: Senators Boren, Nunn, Hollings, Bradley, Cranston,
Metzenbaum, Murkowski, Warner, Danforth, Rudman, Gorton,
Chafee and Cohen.

Also Present: George Tenet, Staff Director; John Moseman, Mi-

ority Staff Director; Britt Snider, Chief Counsel; and Kathleen
McGhee, Chief Clerk.

. Chairman Boren. If we could clear the well, please, we will
egin.

We resume again this morning the confirmation hearings on the
nomination of Mr. Robert Gates by the President to be the Director
of Central Intelligence.

Last evening we recessed while Senator Metzenbaum, the Sena-
tor from Ohio, was questioning the witness. We will continue with
that questioning again this morning.

I will again for the record ask the nominee if he understands
that he remains under oath,

Mr. GaTes. Yes, sir.

Chairman Boren. We will continue with thoge questions this
morning for approximately an hour and a half.

Other Members of the panel have indicated to me that they also

Senator I¥ Amato will be the next questioner.

Staff members, please notify Senator D’ Amato that he will follow
Senator Metzenbaum at the end of that period.

We will simply see how far we can get with the testimony and
the questioning of the nominee today.

s I have indicated we will not be in session past 5:00 this after-
noon or tomorrow because of the observance of Yom Kippur. We
will resume on Thursday morning at 9:30 with outside witnesses.

It will be necessary for us to proceed with these outside witnesses
on Thursday because of their schedules. We will then re-evaluate
where we are with the hearing schedule.
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I will turn at this time to the Senator from Ohio to continue
with his questioning.

Senator Metzenbaum.

Senator METZENBAUM. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, I want to welcome you, Mr. Gates, and welcome
back my colleagues who attended last night’s session.

I think last night’s session sort of indicated to me that a number
of, I guess the entire bank on the other side of the table had pretty
much concluded this was, that the President wanted this appointee
confirmed, that very strong substantive questions were not to be
asked from that side of the aisle and that it was in the nature of a
political confirmation.

It is a little bit disappointing because I do not believe that a
hearing of this kind, a matter of this importance, should have a po-
litical overtone.

But for those who were not here last night and to set the stage
for today’s continuation of my questions——

Senator RupMaN. Mr. Chairman, I just want to make a point of
personal privilege here. I object to that statement from my good
friend from QOhio.

I found the Senator from Ohio was factually incorrect on a
number of presentations last evening, not only of the facts, but on
the law. And when I find that, I am going to sfate that.

And I resent being told that I am sitting here as a political pawn
of anybody because I am not, nor are my colleagues. I would not
accuse the Senator from Ohio of that. And I would appreciate it if
he would not do that to me.

Senator METzZENBAUM, Well, Mr. Chairman, I think that Senator
Rudman is really one of the finest Members we have in the United
States Senate and he is a very good friend of mine. But I would
appreciate if I might be permitted today to continue forth without
being interrupted.

If he takes issue with what I say, certainly, at an appropriate
time, I think that is fine.

Chairman BorgN. I know there are a lot of strong feelings about
the issues before us, but I think there is also a lot of mutual re-
spect among the Members. This is not a period of time for debate,
let me say, on either side of the issue. It is a time for questioning,

I have said in the very beginning of this inquiry that we have
not divided along party lines on any matter in this Committee
since I have been Chairman. I do not expect that to happen now.
expect us to be, in our questions, to do our job thoroughly and
fairly. That is exactly what we want to do.

I would suggest that we use this period as a question time. We
will have plenty of time for debate as we go along.

We have been more or less allowing a question that someone
wants to interject or a follow-on question, but I will try to keep us
from getting into debate. I will ask the cooperation of Members of
both sides not to enter into debate. I do believe that Members of
this Committee all take their responsibilities seriously individually.

So let me ask the Senator from Ohio just to proceed with his
questioning at this time.

Senator MerzEnBauM. All right. I would like to summarize
where I think we stand so far.
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Mr. Gates, my questions last night were probing inconsistencies
between what you said to Congressional Committees at various
times regarding Iran-Contra and what was actually happening in
your shop.

Those questions were necessary, I felt, because of your apparent
inability to recall much at all about that time period. I was hoping
to get some answers to the more than 70 important Iran-Contra
questions posed to you by this Committee, for which you stated you
could not remember what you did, or that you never knew what
others around you were doing, or that you never sought to know
what was happening all around you.

Frankly, Mr. Gates, one of the most difficult challenges that I
am finding in connection with your confirmation relates to the fact
that so much was happening at the CIA and around the CIA that
you have pretty much indicated you did not know. You actually in-
dicated that you did not want to know.

I was particularly interested how in many of those cases there
was, in my view, something that was just hard to comprehend in
the way you had used broad, general statements to obscure what I
consider to be inconvenient realities.

One very difficult area that, as you know, we discussed last
night, is what you did or should do when ordered by the President
not to disclose a covert action program to Congress. I am dismayed
by the fact that in 1986 you could assure us of the CIA’s commit-
ment to Congressional oversight while still not telling us of a major
covert action program,

If you felt you could not tell us the full truth because the Presi-
dent demanded your silence, then you should not have left us with
the distinct impression that the CIA fully accepted the need to be
candid and forthcoming with Congress.

I was also concerned by your answers as to how you would have
handled a direct question in 1986 regarding whether there were
undisclosed covert action Findings. You said that in such a situa-
tion you would have given a slightly deceptive answer, namely that
you lacked all the facts, in order to get time to warn Casey that
you were on the spot.

Politically, T can understand why you would want to do that. But
you also said that you would not view this answer as misleading,
which I found hard to accept. To slightly deceive Congress is to
mislead Congress.

You went on to say that you would have gotten back to us quick-
ly with the full truth or you would resign. And that unquestionably
was a good answer.

But this seems to miss the point. If you are hiding things from
us, even for a short time, then how can we ever trust you truthful-
ly to answer a question when it is posed?

Last night I put forth my view that when this Committee asks a
CIA official to testify on a matter, it does not and cannot suffice for
that official to give incomplete answers. For instance, we now know
that in the case of your preparation of Iran-Contra testimony for
Director Casey, you ignored and omitted information that turned
out to be unbelievably important.

Given that there were serious concerns about the Agency’s ac-
tivities, ranging from the November 1985 incident to the use of a
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man like Ghorbanifar in the operation, those concerns should have
been shared with us as well. You have to level with us, not just
give us the CIA line.

It is abundantly clear that Bill Casey failed to level with us. He
evaded saying that Albert Hakim was used as the interpreter at
some meetings with the Iranians. He avoided any mention of Ollie
North by saying that he could not be sure who at the White House
had worked on the January 1986 finding. He left out the role of
Mr. Ghorbanifar, even though he had personally warned the Presi-
dent about that person.

According to your testimony last night, you not only failed to in-
clude a full description of the problems 1in this operation in Mr.
Casey’s testimony, you also failed to read the transcript of the
hearing.

Mr. Gates, this was not just a routine intelligence hearing. It was

ot like, as I think you said, one of the thousand appearances, or
something of that kind, of CIA people before Congressional hear-
ings. This was the CIA’s first effort to tell Congress about the big-
gest intelligence blunder in years.

Moreover, you had previously promised this Committee that you
would correct the record if mistakes were made in CIA testimony.
And yet, no such correction was offered.

We were, in fact; misled.

And a few scant days later, when this case broke wide open,
every Member of this Committee knew they had been misled. My
point here is that you entered into an obligation that you did not
fulfill. Your answers last night affirm that fact.

Maybe the problem was in giving such blithe assurances to Con-
gress in the first place, but I do not think s0. I think the problem
was that once having given this assurance, you failed to set up a
system that would enable you to keep your promise. And that leads
me to the basic theme thaf today’s questions will develop.

Let us set aside the question that your actions in Iran-Contra
were at odds with what you were saying to us. The fact is that this
whole episode was not one in which your performance was especial-
ly admirable.

Let us go back to the first time that you say you heard about the
Iran arms sale. On December 5, 1985, you attended a meeting at
the CIA where you learned that the Agency had been involved the
previous month in supporting an Israeli transfer of U.8. arms to
Iran without a Presidential Finding. A Finding had then been
drafted to include retroactive language and a Congressional non-
disclosure clause,

Such a transfer violated stated arms embargoes on Iran and
Agency rules on getting high-level approval for operational support
to the White House. It violated an Executive Order provision on
the CIA’s role in covert actions. And it violated U.S. laws on the
need for Presidential Findings and on the need to report to Con-
gress.

The record suggests that in 1985 and 1986, when the U.S. began
to ship arms to Iran, you did nothing to protect blatant violation of
U.S. policy and circumvention of your own authority.

The question is, why did you not immediately voice your objec-
tions to your superiors? Why did you not immediately insist on
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proper reporting procedure with respect to any future covert activi-
ty?

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT M. GATES—Resumed

Mr. Gares. Senator Metzenbaum, the period during which these
events took place I was Deputy Director for Intelligence. The meet-
ing that Mr. McMahon held was one in which I was asked, along
with another colleague from the analytical directorate, several fac-
tual questions about what had happened, what was happening in
Iran.

We were asked about the number of operational tanks and about
a biography of one of the military leaders and several other ques-
tions. Mr. McMahon, according to the reconstruction of the notes of
his assistant, then turned to people from the Directorate of Oper-
ations and was told that a flight had gone, that several other
flights were expected. It was not certain whether HAWKS were on
the plane. And I think, in response to a question from him, that
the Finding had been signed.

These were all matters completely outside my area of responsibil-
ity, Senator. I make no bones about the fact that I was not knowl-
edgeable about the specifics of the law with respect to the Arms
Export Control Act and so on.

But, again, these matters were outside of my area. And I would
say to you that when it became my responsibility, as I indicated
last night, I promulgated new rules as Acting Director forbidding a
proprietary to undertake any action on behalf of the (Government
without presumption that a Finding would be required.

Senator MeTZENBAUM. Do you have any doubt in your mind that
what was being talked about at that meeting was illegal, was im-
proper, and that it should not have taken place? Did you not have
any feeling about that at all? :

Mr. GaTes. No, sir.

And I may say that the Deputy Director at the time, Mr. McMa-
hon, was a man of enormous probity and I was completely comfort-
able with the circumstances that were going on at that time.

Senator MeTzENBaUM. You did not think that you ought to let
your own group review the draft Finding? )

Did it not appear on its face to you that there was something
wrong taking place? '

Mr. Gares. No, sir, it did not.

Senator MeTzENBAUM. I think that is one of the things of con-
cern, Mr. Gates. And that is that when you knew, when you
learned things—and you are not a novice in this business, you were
a pretty high ranking official at all points in the last several years,
certainly during this period—you were not at least sensitive to
what was transpiring and did not feel a responsibility either to call
a halt or to raise a question with those in higher authority.

Six weeks later a subsequent Finding was signed, which escalat-
ed U.S. involvement in this mission. You have testified that you
did not learn of the second Finding until a week after it was
signed. It authorized direct U.S. shipment of arms to Iran, a con-
tinuation of the policy of non-disclosure to Congress, and a require-
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ment that you provide U.S. intelligence to Iran pertaining to both
Iraqi order of battle and the Soviet threat to Iran’s borders.

As far as I can tell, your only objection to this initiative was a
meek protest that you did not agree with the plan for intelligence
analysis coming out of your Directorate. But, then you went ahead
and provided the intelligence.

The Finding authorized using Mr. Ghorbanifar as a middle man
in this operation, even though he had failed CIA lie detector tests
and other intelligence agencies had been warned by the CIA to stay
away from him. It also authorized keeping Congress out of the icop,
I suppose because we were allegedly unreliable and would not keep
it secret.

In this instance we find that the Executive branch trusted a
shady character like Ghorbanifar to be a key player on behalf of
the Government, but considered Congress so unreliable that it kept
us in the dark.

When all of this came to your attention, did it occur to you that
the White House and the National Security Council were keeping
Congress in the dark not for security reasons, but because they
knew what they were doing was not sustainable as a credible policy
with the American people?

Mr. GaTrs. Senator, the Agency in the person of Mr. McMahon
in early December protested this entire policy in a meeting with
the President. At the same time, I was told later, the Secretary of
State and Secretary of Defense registered their objections with the
policy. And those objections had been overruled by the President.

At the end of January when I was briefed on the Finding, I do
not think that my protest was a meek one. Mr. McMahon subse-
quently sent a cable to Director Casey saying that everyone in the
Agency who was involved in this thought it was a bad idea and
that we should not proceed. But he had been told to proceed by Ad-
miral Poindexter; and unless Mr. Casey interceded, we would pro-
ceed to provide the intelligence.

So with respect to Ghorbanifar, I was later told that the Agency
had in fact been very direct with the NSC in telling them that
Ghorbanifar was an unreliable character. As I indicated yesterday,
however, the testimony, the earlier drafts of the testimony that I
saw that Mr. Casey would have given indicated that Israel had, in
fact, vouched for the reliability of Mr. Ghorbanifar and T think
that that overruled

Senator METZENBAUM. When did you see this?

Mr. Gares. I was told about—I'm sorry, the comment about Mr.
Casey’s statement?

Senator MEtzENBAUM. That Israel vouched for Mr. Ghorbanifar?

Mr. GaTes. There was a statement in the 12:00 noon draft of the
20 November 1986 testimony that indicated that the Israelis had
vouched for the Iranian intermediary who was Ghorbanifar.

Senator MerzeNBaUM. Did your own informants at the CIA, did
they tell you that Ghorbanifar was reliable?

Mr. GATES, No, sir. I recall hearing around that time—I can’t be
precise about the timing—that he had, in fact, failed the polygraph
test agd he was considered unreliable, and that we had so informed
the NSC.
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Senator MeTzENBAUM. Did you not have a right to review the
draft Findings?

Mr. GartEes. In the normal course of events, yes, sir.

Senator METzENBAUM. In fact, you actually cited your general
role in reviewing draft Findings as a qualification for you to be
confirmed for higher office. _

Why did you not stick up for your right to review these Findings
at that point?

Mr. GaTes. This was clearly a special arrangement that had been
made and was being carried out under the auspices of the White
House, the President. The President had been directly involved.
Mr. Casey and Mr. McMahon had been directly involved. :

I probably should have protested. Yes, sir. But I did not under
those circumstances.

Senator METZENBAUM. You gave written testimony to this Com-
mittee that you saw a scenario paper for the National Security
Council in February 1986 which laid out a schedule for the ex-
change of arms for hostages.

You have described the scenario, which predicted the Ayatollah
Khomeini would be dead by May of that year, as laughable. That
was the quality of the intelligence operation that had been taken
out of your agency’s control. Yet, you allowed it to go forward.

At the same time, you, in your words, quote, “lost touch with the
project” as you became involved with the confirmation process to
become Deputy Director of Central Intelligence. Now, the foreign
policy implications of an arms for hostages swap with Iran were
staggering. The plan being implemented was doomed to be a fiasco.

The question is, how could you put your personal agenda over
your obvious obligations as a professional to put a halt to this vio-
lation of U.S. policy? And let me peint out that I am not making
an accusation that you put your personal agenda over your obliga-
tions; rather, I am referring to previous testimony, previous state-
ments of yours, either in your questionnaire or at some other point,
that that was the reason that you did not give more attention to
the subject.

Mr. Gargs. Sir, the President of the United States made the deci-
sion to sell arms for hostages. He may or may not have made that
decision in the context of larger objectives or an opening to Iran
and so forth. But that was his decision.

It was a policy decision. It was a policy decision that was protest-
ed by the Secretary of State and the Secretary of Defense and the
Acting Director of Central Intelligence.

Again, it was a policy decision. The President decided to go for-
ward. It seems to me that it is not the role of CIA to question the
policy decision. We should have questioned how our part of that op-
eration was carried out and the fact that it was in violation of all
of the procedures and approaches that we normally would take in
one of these covert actions.

In that area I think we were negligent as an agency. But I would
say that as a policy matter it was not up to me, or in fact to Mr.
Mcha.hon, to question the policy decision that the President had
made.

Senator METZENBAUM. In May 1986, you were Deputy Director.
You or Mr. Casey received a memo from Charlie Allen regarding



Ghorbanifar and release of the hostages. Mr. Allen warned that
the NSC initiative to secure release of the hostages was “dead in
the water.”

Not only was the mission at variance with our stated foreign
policy, but it was operationally a failure. There was no longer any

serve the integrity of the Agency? :
1\/_Ir. GA_TES. Well, sir, T've indicated that I told Director.Casey.at

hostages out. In fact, they continued to believe that well into No-
vember. And so that wasg their justification for continuing to keep
it secret. :

Senator MeTzZENBAUM. But you were not concerned at al] as to
the integrity of the Agency, knowing the impropriety of this act,
knowing it violated American laws? -

Mr. GATEs. Well, sir, I didn’t have any indication that the action
was a violation of the law. :

We had a legitimate Finding signed by the President. I had no
indicatio§1 that there was any violation of U.S. law. I thought it

things that I should have done was to have protested harder, more
vigorously that the non-notification provision be lifted.

Senator METZENBAUM. As you mention again your statement yes-
terday, I do have to reflect upon the fact that nothing is more
useful in many instances than to say, I wag wrong, mea culpa, my
fault, I 'am sorry, I should not have, I would do it differently,

But we are sitting here in Judgment of you as to whether you
have the integrity, the intellectual capacity, the responsibility to
head one of our nation’s most important, if not the most important
agency. Certainly there is nothing comparable to it,

And the question that we have to decide in our mind is if he did
not see the wrong in yesteryear, if he did not protest when he was
in a position to protest, if he did not raise issues when he could
have raised issues, if he did not report to the Congress when he
should have reported to the Congress, what is the magical transfor-
mation that has taken place in Robert Gates when he comes before
us today, yesterday, and the next several days for confirmation
that makes that Robert Gates a different Person from the one who
did not meet those same responsibilities in Yesteryear?

Mr. Gares. Senator, I would say to you that, as I indicated yes-
terday, when I arrived ag Deputy Director I had no direct experi-
ence in supervising clandestine activities. The role and nature of
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proprietaries and so on, as an example, were not something that [
had dealt with in the past. ) o
These operations that you are describing, the Iran initiative, had

that there was anything improper going on. ) )
I moved slowly in involving myself in the clandestine affairs of

not today, not yesterday, not when I was nominated for this posi-
tion now, not even when I was nominated in February 1987, did I
suddenly come to these things or learn these lessons, )

But the record is clear that ] learned them immediately. Begin-
ning when I became acting Director in the middie of December
1986, I began to put into place the kind of procedures that would
ensure that this kind of thing wouldn’t happen again. And I took
actions on receiving information.

The illustration that I used yesterday, to insure that the Con-
gress was fully informed when we received information that even
suggested the possibility of an impropriety. And that happened,
Senator, within a matter of days after I became Acting Director,
not in connection with any nomination procedure,

Senator METZENBAUM. I think that is one of the toughest ques-
tions for us sitting on this Committee, and that is, is the Robert
Gates who failed to meet his responsibilities in yesteryear a differ-
ent Robert Gates from the one who aspires to be Director of the
CIA?

It is a difficult question for us to decide.

I will go on with my questioning.

Chairman Bogren. Senator Metzenbaum, let me interject one

oint.
P Mr. McMahon's name has come up a number of times.

Senator METZENBAUM. Pardon?

Chairman Boren. Mr. McMahon, the name of Mr. MecMazhon, h@s
come up a number of times today in the oral questioning and in
the nominee’s answers.

I will point out, I want to point out to the Members of the Com.
mittee that we do have Mr. McMahon scheduled to be a witness
before us on Thursday. So we will also have an opportunity to ques-
tion Mr. McMahon.

Senator METZENBAUM. I thank the Chairman. I thank you. Later
that same month, Mr. Gates, you were briefed by Admiral Poin-

Poindexter’s briefing was an opportunity to point out that the
secret scheme was failing. We were sending arms and we were not
getting hostages. It was a chance to speak up and make the case
that Congress ought to be brought in, that Congress ought to be ad-
vised,



Why did you not speak up at that point?
Mr. GarEs. Senator, I should have spoken up. I indicated that

that. And I frankly deferred to him in this matter. As I indicated
yesterday I probably should have spoken up more.

Senator METZENBAUM. Well, you knew you could not speak up to
Casey. You said you became uneasy about the prolonged delay in
the timely notification of Congress. T think I remember you saying
yesterday it was 11 months after that Congress was notified of this.
Am I correct in my recollection?

Mr. Gargs. I think about 10 months, 10 months or so.

Senator METZENBAUM. You also said you spoke to Casey, encour-
aging him to advise this Committee, but he overruled you.

You were faced with the choice of continuing a successful, profes-
sional life where you were in line to be Director of Central Intelli-
gence or you could have protested to the President or you could
have resigned. :
alThe President and Casey both favored the policy, so you went

ong.

Mr. Gates, this disastrous policy was barreling down a track
headed for a cliff, Did you not think you had to do more than you
did? Or are you now saying, “Yes, in retrospect I should have done
more, but I did not’'?

Mr. GaTes. Senator, again, the decision to undertake these deal-
ings with Iran was a policy decision.

It was a decision that more senior policy people in the Govern-
ment did not feel warranted their resignation.

I would say that, frankly, in my 25 years of experience in Gov-
ernment there has been more than one Presidential policy that I
thought was flawed, that I thought held negative consequences po-
tentially for this country. And I decided to stay on the job. It is not
because I thought I was going to be Director of Central Intelli-
%grslge. I certainly had no anticipation of that during the spring of

I had just become Deputy. That was a new assignment for me, so
I had no idea that that would happen. In fact, the odds were

career professional to ever become Director of Central Intelligence,
given the history of the preceding 15 years or so.

I take your point in terms of the fact that I should have protest-
ed non-notification of the Congress. I acknowledged that yesterday.
But in terms of the policy, it was a policy decision by the President.
It wasn’t the first wrong policy decision by a President. That did
not warrant my resignation in my view,

Senator METZENBAUM. Admiral Poindexter has twice testified
that he approached you in July 1986 with a proposal that the CIA
purchase a supply network that had been set up for the Contras
and consisted of airplanes, boats, warehouses, and weapons.

In his deposition, he said your response was, “Let me check into
it,” or something like that.

The network was worth over $4 million. An exchange of commu-
nications through the White House computer between North and
Poindexter appears to verify Poindexter’s testimony that he had at
least one conservation with you about the possibility of the CIA
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taking over the resupply network when legal Lestrictions were
lifted by Congress. A private network set up and run by officials of
the U.S, Government was, of course, in violation of the Boland
Amendments,

You told us last night that although you did not remember Poin-
dexter’s call or your subsequent call out to Alan Fiers, it would not
have seemed unusual for the private benefactors to want to recoup
their investment by selling off their assets. I think you put it,
“Well, it did not seem illogical these people were doing this, asking
the CIA to come in and buy it.”

But should it not have bothered you that the National Security
Adviser to the President was acting as their broker? Why did you
not immediately notify the Attorney General, or why did you not
go and report to your Director that NSC officials were brokering
for the private benefactors? Or why did you not come to Congress?

How can we be certain that when you again learn of some viola-
tion of law, as this was, that you will not again stay silent about
any future illegalities by Government officials?

Even yesterday you made it appear that it really was not that
terrible a thing for CIA to be involved in talking about, or buying,
paying this private group the $4 million. But they were a private
group, as we now know.

Mr. GaTes. Senator, at that time I had no idea that they were
anything more than a private group of people who had gotten to-
gether to support the Contras. :

had no indication that there was a violation of law. And it did
not seem to me that, again, I have no direct recollection of this con-
versation. In fact, as I indicated last night there is no record in
either my meeting logs or my telephone logs of having this conver-
sation with Admiral Poindexter.

But accepting the premise that we did have the conversation, it
would not have seemed to me that he was brokering for the private
benefactors as much as saying these people had made a contribu.
tion and at the encouragement of their Government, their money
and so on, and that they were interested when a legal program
came into effect, a congressionally approved program, in recouping.
Now, I'm reading all of that into it. None of that was discussed at
the time. But that’s why I didn’t see anything untoward in what he
said to me.

Senator METZENBAUM. Even as you sit here, you do not seem to
recognize the responsibility to have said to Poindexter, “Hey, wait
a minute. What do you as a Government official, top ranking Gov-
ernment official, what do you have to do in connhection with this?
Where are we involved? How is our Government involved? How did
you get involved? What is going on here?”

Even as you sit here, you do not see any problem about that. You
say, “I do not see anything wrong. We just thought a private group
was doing this.”

But you do not see any responsibility. You have an inquiring
mind, ostensibly, to be in the position that you are presently in and
the one that you aspire to be in. )

How can you sit here and not say to us that you should have said
to Poindexter, “What in the devil are you doing in this situation?
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What is this all about? Is our Government i 2

seﬂn b?} find tIIlat to be a problem at all. ent involved?” You do not
r. GATES. I'm trying to put myself back in i

tor, in terms of myrlgnogvledge——y A’ into that period, Sena-

Senator METZENpAu_M. That is what I am asking you to do,

Mr. Gartes [continuing]. At that time. And all I'm telling you is
that I had no idea that there was anything improper or inappropri-
ate going on. I had a view of Admiral Poindexter that he was a
comp’letely straight arrow and a completely straight shooter. I
wasn't suspicious that he was involved in criminal activity or
erngIdo%g of any kind.

. As I indicated earlier yesterday, maybe I should have be
skeptical at that time. But it seemedy to me a not inappf‘gpl;]igltzg
thing for him to say. Or at least, it didn’t set off any alarm bells
for me that something inappropriate or illegal was going on.
Obviously, if I had known more about what the NSC role was, I

tor, but perhaps elsewhere. But based on the information that I

_Ser_lator METzEl_\TBAUM. I am afraid, Mr. Gates, that the fact that
we sit here looking at you as the should-have-been, would-have-
been, could-have-been, rather than the man who is, concerns me.
~ You testified before this Committee on December 4, 1986, regard-
ing Charlie Allen’s October 1, 1986, approach to you about his con-
cerns re‘gardn}g possible diversion of monies to the Contras. You
told us, “consistent with the way we had responded to such stories
In the past, my first reaction was to tell Mr. Allen I didn’t want to
hear any more about it, that I didn’t want to know anything about
funding for the Contras.” Those are your words, not mine.
Contmum_g your comment, “We actively discouraged people from

want, deliberately not to want to know. “I didn’t want to kno
anything abpu? funding for the Contras. I didn't want to hear an;:j
m%‘ritle abouz;tlt." bed

€ motto inscribed on the entrance of CIA headquarters is
Know the Truth. The Agency is mandated to learn wh(éat is going
on in the world and report ifs knowledge to the proper public offi-
cials, including Congress, a Congress which was on record as being
very concerned about our Government’s funding of the Contras.

ow do you reconcile your determination not to learn the facts
about funding for the Contras with your duties to follow the CIA
motto, to ensure that the CIA obeyed the law, to do the job that
you were ostensibly doing? How can you justify a determination
not to know?

Mr. Gares. Two points, Senator.

First of all, it was Agency policy to keep as great a distance as
possible between ourselves and the private benefactors. There were
clear prohibitions in the Boland Amendment in terms of our rela-
tionship with the private benefactors. And my initial reaction to
that policy was that we weren’t supposed to know, we weren’t sup-
posed to haye any contacts; it was basically none of our business
who was giving money to the Contras or how much it was.
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Now the second point is that although that was my immediate
reaction to Mr. Allen, one of the surprise, perhaps, to what he said,
the fact is that the actions I took are quite different.

I told him to see the Director as soon as possible. When he saw
the Director we had him put down in writing what his views were.
I called in the General Counsel. I took his recommendations. And
we took all of this down to the National Security Advisor. So that
while my initial reaction of surprise or dismay to what he was
about to tell me or what he wanted to tell me was as you have de-
scribed it, my actions bespeak a very different approach and a very
different attitude. '

Let me make one final point on this question, Senator Metz-
enbaum. As I've thought about my 1987 confirmation hearing, one
of the few things that I said in that hearing that I regretted was
the statement that we didn’t want to know and we shunned infor-
mation.

Unfortunately, I chose in those hearings to speak from an insti-
tutional standpoint. I choose to repeat what I had been told by
others in the Agency had been their approach when people had
come to them or when they thought they might have the opportu-
nity to learn more—they had shunned the information. They had
turned it away. They didn’t want to know,

But I don’t think there’s any example in the record and of all the
interviews that this committee has done of somebody coming to me
from the Agency and reporting wrongdoing or an impropriety
during that period. And the first time I have any recollection of
that happening on October 1, 1986, I took an action. And [ think
that is more important.

Senator METZENBAUM. Mr. Gates, you do not seem to understand
that is it not enough to just wait for somebody to come and report
an impropriety. You are an intelligence officer. You are skilled in
this business.

You get dribbles. You get something from Charlie Allen, or you
get some comment from Poindexter, or you pick up some informa-
tion from others, I think Kerr, all of them touch upon the subject.
There are others, and I cannot remember all of them at th}s
moment. What bothers me is that this very intelligent man, this
high-ranking official in the CIA and formerly the NSC, does not
say, “Wait a minute, tell me some more. What did you say? What
did you say about a Swiss bank account? What did you say about
this or that?” But instead you say, “We did not want to know. 1
was not interested in information.” And frankly, I think that is
fundamental to the whole question of this confirmation. Why does
this man, who is so strongly supported by the President, and by my
colleagues on the other side of the aisle, and I respect them what-
ever their judgment may be, why should this man be confirmed,

who did not want to know and, when he was given dribbles of in-
formation, was not willing to press forward and say, “Wait a
minute, what is going on? I want to know more. There is a possible
violation of the Boland Amendment here. I believe we have a re-
sponsibility.”

It was as if he had said, “I am fading into the shadows.” I do not
want to hear another word about it.” See no evil, hear no evil,
speak no evil. And so, Robert Gates, who was on the upswing at
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the Agency, knows that things are happening gets enouy,
maybe complete evidence, not enough I%I; con%ic%, not engfllghni?g
take to a jury, but enough that a well-trained intelligence officer
shoulgl have been alerted, alarmed, concerned in each instance, In
each ;nstance—-th_ls is the disturbing part—it was not just once, it
was time and again. In each instance, Robert Gates says, “I do not
wa{}t tcln( knovx; }Ezmty moro;-:.”h That is what bothers me.

ou know that oversight and reporting of runaway operati i
a key duty of every CIA official, from cgase officer, gr Ii)ntt?ltl}ggiclg
officer, to Deputy Director, right up the lire. The question is—J
guess I have already stated it—why should we believe that you wil]
diligently pursue such duties as Director, regardless of the political
tonsequences, when your first reaction to concerns over possible il-
legal activity was a desire to remain ignorant of the facts? [ guess
you have answered that to the best of your ability. If you want to
add anything more you are welcome to do so, and then I will go on.

r. GATES._ Well again, Senator, T would Jjust observe that when
the information was brought to me, although, as I acknowledged
yesterday, in retrospect I did not do enough, the fact is that [ did

be an upright straight-arrow person, and encouraged him t
[ . s 0 have
the White House counsel review it. We urged t%at it be made
gubhc. We urged both of those things again on the 6th of Novem-
er.
This was a policy in which the President was directly a
A g nd per-
sonally involved. They still believed that they could getysome }I;o;-
tages out, but those actions were taken, Senator. And I think that

would not happen, and furthermore, to begin build; i
would n , . , gin building the kind of
Institutional safeguards that would ensure that we w%uld not end
Up 1n an operation of that kind again.

Sen|ator METzENBAUM. You testified on several occasions that

Contras in Nicaragua. You viewed that as mere “speculation,” that
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that not warrant greater action? Was that not a matter of major
concern?

Instead, what you did was you waited a week to see Casey, you
waited another week to get a memo from Charlie Allen, and then
simply told Poindexter that he had a problem. Was not greater,
more expeditious action warranted than that? ‘

Mr. Gates. Mr. Allen has told me that when he met with me, |
told him in that meeting that he should see the Director as quickly
as possible. He told me that the fact that he did not get in to see
the Director until the 7th was due to his own scheduling, or that
that was his problem, that I had told him to see him as quickly as
possible.

We told him to write up his findings. It took him a week to do
that. It was a long memorandum, 7 or 8 pages, single-spaced, so the
timing, Senator, was more a function of Mr. Allen’s than of mine.

Senator MerzEnBaum. You say the timing was more Mr. Allen’s
than yours?

Mr. Gates. In terms of the delays that you were speaking of,

Senator METZENBAUM. Were you superior to Mr. Allen at that
point? :

Mr. GaTes. Yes, sir.

Senator METzENRAUM. So that once you knew the information,
and you knew of the improprieties, to say that you put it off on a
subordinate, is that an adequate answer, that because Mr. Allen
did not get around to it, therefore nothing took place?

Mr. GaTEes. Senator, again, as I indicated yesterday, Mr. Allen’s
primary concern was over the operational security of this entire
initiative with Iran. That meant the danger of disclosure of this
major controversial foreign policy initiative. In his 7-plus page,
single-spaced memorandum, there was but one sentence that made
reference to the possibility of a diversion; and even there, he
couched it in terms that if Mr. Ghorbanifar’s financial needs are
not met, he might make the following allegations, and one of those
allegations was that some of the money had heen diverted from the
arms sales to joint projects of the United States and Israel. That
was a much vaguer formulation than he had come to me with.

Senator METZENBAUM. Did you think you ought to go back to
him and say, “Why did you not put in your memo the things you
told me?”

Mr. Gates. I assumed that as he had sat down to put it on paper,
his own uncertainties had grown; and again, the focus was primari-
ly on the operational security of this matter, not the diversion. We
probably lost sight of the main problem there, but the focus was
clearly on the danger of disclosure of the entire initiative.

Senator MerzEnBaUM. He also pointed out, in that memo, that
Ghorbanifar had been charged $15 million instead of the $5 million
to $7 million cost, did he not?

Mr. Gares. He mentioned that there had been some back and
forth, and charges of overcharging, but I do not recall the specifics,
that he had mentioned the specifics. Frankly, Senator, these ap-
peared to me to be a couple of Iranian arms dealers dealing with
one another, and the idea that somebody was getting cheated did
not strike me as particularly surprising.




Senator METZENBAUM. Wait a minute. Was not Secord or Hakim
or North in the loop? When you say it was just some foreign arms
dl;aalgrs, Secord and North were not foreign arms dealers, were
they? =

Mr. Gargs. The only recollection that I had of Mr. Secord’s name
being mentioned was the broad view, the broad statement by Mr,
Allen that one of the things that roused his concern was the fact
that Mr. Secord was involved in the private benefactor effort, and
also was involved in the Iranian effort. I did not recall any specific
discussion of the specific roles that either Secord or Hakim were
playing in the initiative,

Senator MEeTZENBAUM. On December 4, 1986, you agreed with
Senator Cohen’s characterization of your views as follows: “In
other words, if the money was skimmed off by Khashoggi, Ghor-
banifar, or Secord, or anybody else, or North himself, and given to
the Contras, then as far as you were concerned that does not in-
volve the CIA in any fashion.” And according to my notes, you
agree;i with Senator Cohen’s description to that effect. Do you still
agree’

Mr. GaTtes. No, sir.

Senator MerzENBAUM. Well, how do you disagree now, or are you
questioning the quote that I gave you?

Mr. GATEs. No, sir. I had less than 24 hours’ notice that 1 was to
appear before that hearing, Senator. I had virtually no time to pre-
pare. I had little knowledge of the specific arrangements that had
been involved in some of these financial transactions, with respect
to the arms transfers. I think that—I do not know the law specifi-
cally, I am not a lawyer—but I would say now that if that informa-
I:ion came to my attention, I would regard that as a serious prob-
em.

Senator METZENBAUM. What would you do about it now? .

Mr. Gates. Well, if something like that came to my attention
now, Senator, I would first see the National Security Advisor and
tell him there was a problem. If he did not immediately follow up
either with the White House counsel or the Attorney General, I
would—and if he did not or did not want me to do that, I would go
to the President.

Senator METZENBAUM. In those same hearings in December 1986,
you testified, “We did not want to ask him factual questions about
what he was doing with the funds. I assumed that he was involved
in efforts to get money for the Contras, and this was one of those
areas where we did not pursue obvious lines of questioning because
we did not want to get involved in knowing about the sources of
funding.”

Mr. Gates, that is incredible. That is almost unbelievable that
you, the Deputy Director of the CIA, did not want to launch an in-
vestigation because you did not want to get involved in knowing
about the source of funding. Were you afraid you would find out
something illegal was going on? Why did you not want to get in-
volved? Why did you not want to know the facts?

Mr. GaTEs. Again, because of my concern that we keep our dis-
tance from the private benefactors, Senator.
hSe%nator MeTzENBAUM. So you had a willful intent not to know
the facts.

Mr. GaTes. About the private benefactor effort. Yes, sir.

Senator METZENBAUM. Charlie Allen also swears that he told you
during your October 1 meeting that when he discussed Mr. Ghor-
banifar’s problems with Ollie North, North said he might have to
use “the reserve to pay off Ghorbanifar and keep him quiet.” Did
that not suggest that North was getting extra money from some-
where? Again, did you not want to know where the private money
was coming from. : .

Mr. Gartes. No, sir. I do not remember Mr. Allen saying that; but
assuming he did say it, mention of the word reserve would have
suggested to me that North was somehow suggesting that the CIA
reserve be used, and I just considered that sort of outlandish talk
and dismissed it—would have dismissed it. The idea that there was
some other kind of account would not have occurred to me at all.

Senator METZENBAUM. Mr. Gates, Mr. Allen told you that there
had been overcharges to the middlemen who were supposedly help-
ing us get hostages out of the Middle East. In other words, someone
was cheating the people we were relying on to rescue American
livests Did you not think it important that you get to the bottom of
that?

Mr. Gartes. Senator, as I indicated earlier, 1 thought that most of
the people we were working with were highly unreliable.

Senator METZENBAUM. You did not care if they were being cheat-
ed? Let us assume they were highly unreliable. Let us also assume
that they were helping to rescue lives, contrary to,actual fact, but
let us make those assumptions. If somebody was an unreliable
person, but that person was trying to rescue American lives, would
it not bother you at all if our Government or its representatives
were somehow involved in cheating them?

Mr. Gares. My understanding, Senator, at that time was that the
two aspects of this operation were basically unrelated. On the one
hand, you had the arms sales to Iran; but it was the Iranian Gov-
ernment that, in fact, was involved in the hostage releases, not
those who were engaged in the arms transfers.

Senator METZENBAUM. You also learned from Allen, a respected
National Intelligence Officer, that he believed there was a diver-
sion of profits from the Iranian project to the Contras, but you did
nothing at all, waiting a week even to bring the news to your supe-
rior. Frankly, why should we confirm a person who in the past has
been so indifferent, so lax about his responsibilities within his own
agency, or to the President, and to the people of this country? The
fact that you failed to move, the fact that you sat back, the fact
that you listened to information, learned information and it did not
trigger any response on your part, causes concern as to what you
would do if you were head of the CIA.

Mr. Gates. Well, Senator, with all due respect, I think I did take
an action. As I indicated, I told Mr. Allen to see the Director as
soon as possible. He saw him on the Tth, and we directed him to do
his paper at that time.

Senator METzENBAUM. Well, the day after Mr. Allen voiced his
concerns to you about possible diversion of profits from the Iran
mission to the Contras, you attended a regularly scheduled weekly
meeting with Admiral Poindexter, whose NSC staff was running
the Iran mission. Why did you not ask him directly, “Was there a
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diversion of funds? What did the NSC know about the overcharges
to %;llixe granian middlemen?” Why did not you just put the question
to him? o : -

Mr. Gates. Well, Senator, I think that that falls into the catego-
ry that I described yesterday of areas where I should have pressed
both Mr. Casey, and in that particular case Admiral Poindexter,
more vigorously. I believe my thinking at the time was to wait
until Mr. Allen had put down his thoughts on paper, and see what
it looked like.

Senator METZENBAUM. On October Tth, you attended a meeting
with-Mr. Casey where Mr. Allen told him his concerns regarding
the overcharges to the Iranian middlemen. Mr. Casey had his own
revelation. A Businessman Casey had represented in his days as a
private attorney, Mr. Roy Furmark, had visited Mr. Casey that
same day. Mr. Furmark had told Casey about two Canadian inves-
tors who had invested capital in the purchase of the arms from the
Iran sales. According to Furmark, they were now threatening to
sue their partner, Mr. Adnan Khashoggi, for nonpayment.

Mr. Khashoggi himself had not been paid by Ghorbanifar and
would in turn certainly sue Ghorbanifar and name the United
States in order to collect. Mr. Furmark was similarly warning Mr.
Casey that the security of the mission was in danger. This story by
itself would have been enough for most people to immediately call
for a full investigation. Coupled with Mr. Allen’s concerns regard-
ing overcharges, it would seem to me it should have been a red flag
complete with bells and whistles. This was a problem. This was
something of concern. This could be disastrous. Yet you did noth-
ing. You were content to tell Mr, Allen to prepare a memo. It
seems, Mr. Gates, that you are very good in this question of prepar-
irl;g 1memos because that essentially bucks the responsibility down
the line,

Why did you not underline the gravity of the situation for Casey?
Why did you not initiate your own personal investigation instead of
saying give me a memo? You knew that the previous memo took a
week to prepare. Why did you not just say, “Let us go to work on
this, let us see what is happening.” Why ‘did you not pick up the
phone, or go see gomebody, raise some questions about it?

Mr, GaTEs. Well, there was just the one memo, Senator, and part
of this had to do with my view of Mr. Allen. I have known Mr.
Allen for probably 20 years. He is a good analyst. 1 think most
people would agree that his greatest strength is in what I would
call worst-case analysis, and I have seen him hit some home runs,
but I have frankly also seen him strike out. And my usual practice,
when I would get a memorandum from Mr. Allen on an interna-
tional event or something, would be to ship it around to people,
have people give their different views, and bounce it back and forth
with what Mr. Allen had said to see if we could pursue the issue
further.

Bearing in mind this general approach of Mr. Allen’s toward
worst-case analysis, it seemed to me that having him put these
thoughts down on paper so we could look at what he had, and what
he believed in some detail, was the right way to go. And when I got
that memorandum is when I asked Mr. Casey for permission to
inform the General Counsel of what had been in Mr. Allen’s memo-

557

randum. So if you ask if I had undertaken an independent investi-
gation, I would say that yes, I did, in the sense of asking the Gener-
al Counsel to look into it. But again, Senator, let me refer back
to——

Senator METZENBAUM. Do you feel that asking a lawyer to look
into it is conducting an independent investigation? Is that your def-
inition of an independent investigation? _

Mr. Gares. Well sir, I believe that asking the General Coun-
sel——

Senator METZENBAUM. Most of us go to lawyers for protection
when we are in trouble.

Mr. Gates. Well, that is not my view of how the General Counsel
operates at the Agency, Senator Metzenbaum, in terms of looking
to them only when you are in trouble. I look to them for guidance
in terms of proper courses of action, whether there has been an il-
legal activity, whether there is a problem or an impropriety. I see
their role as much broader than that. But I would like to make the
point again, Senator, that I made yesterday, and that is that all
these alarms and bells and whistles seem so apparent now, 5 years
away from those events.

I have acknowledged that I should have been more vigilant, but
at the same time, I think it is important to realize how much else
was going on. This was certainly not the sole focus of my efforts, or
my activities, or my concerns at that time. Frankly, I was much
more deeply engaged, in some respects, in trying to deal with some
of the ramifications of the Daniloff affair in Moscow, and trying to
get chronologies relating to that, and so on, than I was with this
matter,

There were a variety of other things going on at the same time,
that I mentioned yesterday—the Philippine coup attempt, the Rey-
kjavik summit, all of which I was deeply engaged in. So it seemed
to me, again acknowledging that I should have been more vigilant
and should have pressed harder, that the actions that I took were
still well intentioned in terms of trying to ensure that there was no
impropriety or illegality going on.

Senator METZENBAUM. When you saw the 7-page memo that
Charlie Allen gave you, did that not also set off some bells, because
Charlie Allen’s memo did not go as far as his oral conversation
with you? He told this Committee in deposition that “I concur that
the memorandum that I prepared on 14 October, 1986 was oblique
in referring to possible illegalities involving 11.S. parties involved
in the Iranian initiative. I did this deliberately. I was hesitant to
allege in writing that White House officials directing the project,
including the National Security Adviser, were engaged in highly
questionable, if not illegal, activities. To put this in writing at this
Juncture did not seem prudent. I was particularly concerned with
what Mr, Casey might do with this memorandum once it was writ-
ten. Mr. Casey, in fact, did what I thought he might do. He, along
with Mr. Gates, took the memorandum to Vice Admiral Poin.
dexter, went over it with him in detail, and left it with him. He
also told Admiral Poindexter that Charlie Allen had prepared it.

Now, you saw the memo. You had to know, at that point when
you read it, that it was not as complete as what he had indicated to
you orally. Did you have occasion to call Charlie Allen and say,
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“Where is the rest of this material?”’ You just mentioned that
when you read it, there was only one line in the whole 7-page
report that referred to this. Did you not have a responsibility, at
that point, to say, “Charlie, what the devil happened to the rest of
stuff you told me? How come it is not in the memo?”’

Mr. Gartes. It simply seemed to me, Senator, that Mr. Allen had
become even more uncertain about the speculation that he had had
about a possible diversion. His concerns, on the other hand, about
an operational—about the operational security had intensified be-
tween the time that he briefed me and the time that he wrote that
memorandum. Again, that then became the focus of our concerns,

Seriator- METZENBAUM. You said that you turned it over to the
CIA lawyer. The question is how the CIA lawyer operated at this
time. He did no investigation. You never asked him whether he
had. You never told your counsel to read Allen's memo, and it was
not read, nor did they interview Allen. Did that not bother you, the
fact that your counsel did not follow up? What is of concern to me
is, this whole matter did not seem to bother you. It just did not faze
you. You said you had this problem over in the Soviet Union, and
had some other problem here, but this problem had to do with the
violation of American law, had to do with the credibility of the
United States Government, and that did not seem to concern you
nearly as much as certain other matters taking place throughout
the world. _

Mr. Gates. Well, certainly I had no indication of a violation of
law; but'I had asked the General Counsel to look into the matter
and ensure that there were no improprieties, and that CIA’s in-
volvement, that there were no problems with it. I did not tell him
specifically how to conduct his investigation. I did not give him
more specific direction than that, and he came back to me later
and said that he did not see any particular problems.

Senator MeTzensaum. I will pass on to another subject. On Octo-
ber 8, 1986, you briefed this Committee on Eugene Hasenfus, the
re-supply crew member who had recently been captured by the
Nicaraguan Government when his plane was shot down. You re-
ported past CIA associations of Hasenfus and the other crew mem-
bers and told us the CIA had no current link to the charter compa-
ny, Southern Air Transport. .

According to CIA General Counsel Doherty, you told him that
Southern Air was involved. A later examination of Southern Air
Transport records showed that the charter company was being paid
out of the same accounts for both Contra re-supply missions and
Iran arms transports. You know that the former CIA proprietary
airline was playing a substantial role in the weapons transport op-
erations to both Iran and Central America. o

You responded to a question from Senator Cohen, asking if the
plane was owned by a private proprietary company of the Agency.
Your answer: “Of CIA, no, sir. We did not have anything to do with
that. And while we know what was going on with the Contras by
virtue of what may come up here in brief, I will tell you thgt I
know, from personal experience, that we have, I think, conscien-

tiously tried to avoid knowing what is going on in terms of any of

this private funding, and tried to stay away from it. Somebody will
say something about Singlaub, or something like that. We will say,
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I do not want to hear anything about it. I do not want to hear any-
thing about it.”

When you told this Committee that Southern Air Transport was
not involved with the CIA, it seems from Mr. Doherty’s testimony
that you knew it was. Now there are two concerns here. One is,
you are indicating that you did not want to know anything about
it, and the second is, were you intentionally misleading this Com-
mittee when you said that the proprietary was not in any way con-
nected with the CIA?

Mr. GaTEes. I am confident I was not misleading the Committee,
Senator. I believe I had been told, at the time, that although South-
ern Air Transport at one time had been a proprietary of CIA’s, it
no longer was, and had not been for some time. So I am not famil-
iar with the details that you have just read, but I am confident
that I certainly was not misleading the Commitiee, or at least
knowingly doing so. I must have been reflecting the fact that I had
been told that it was not any longer a proprietary of CIA’s

Senator METZENBAUM. Mr. Gates, what runs through this entire
hearing, and your answers to the Committee’s questionnaire, is one
clear picture of Robert Gates: Robert Gates, the CIA official who
did not want to know. Your phrase was, in answer to Senator
Cohen’s question, “We will say, I do not want to hear anything
about it.” Now, that is not said once by you, it is said time and
time again. “We do not want to know about it. We do not want to
hear about it.” And I have to say to you that it is extremely trou-
bling to this Senator that a man who aspires to be the top man in
the CIA would be prepared to say, and has on many occasions said,
“Block me out of that information. I do not want to hear it. I am
the total see no evil, hear no evil person. I want to hear nothing. I
want to see nothing that is wrong.” And 1 question how can such
an individual, even though you made the statement yesterday that
you would have done things differently, how do I, or how any other
Members of this Committee know, when we are sitting here, that
Robert Gates, CIA Director, will be any different than Robert
Gates coming up the ladder, who did not want to know, time and
time again, when our Government’s laws were being violated?

Mr. Gartes. Senator, I think it is important to recall that during
that period, from 1982 to 1986, the Congress had passed four differ-
ent laws restricting CIA’s relationships with the Contras. The Con-
gress was very intent that CIA not be involved in the paramilitary
support of the Contras. Each of those pieces of legislation, collec-
tively known as the Boland Amendments, was successively more
restrictive about CIA’s involvement. It was CIA policy, formulated
and sent to the field in cables, about keeping distance from private
benefactors. That is what I have in mind.

The fact is that we were extremely sensitive to the fact of the
number of crises that had taken place in the relationship between
CIA and the Oversight Committees of the Hill, because of the Con-
tras and the Nicaraguan program. By the middle of 1986, CIA was
so gun-shy about its relationship with the Contras, and about keep-
ing its distance from the private benefactors, that it gives rise—
gave rise to the kind of concern that you are talking about.

It was a concern that we not get cross-threaded with the Con-
gress again, that we not know too much, that we not know about
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Senator METZENBAUM. Are you telling us that you thought it was a
violation of the Boland Amendment for you to even inquire—to even
inquire whether the Boland Amendment was being violated? How
could you think that it was against the law to inquire whether the
law was being broken?

Mr. Gates. I had no indication that the law was being broken,
Senator.

Senator METZENBAUM. But you could inquire to find out whether
the law was being broken. ‘Are we doing something Improper?
What are the facts in connection with this matter?”

Mr. Gares. That is exactly what I asked the Deputy Director of
Operations on October 9th, Senator. That is exactly what I asked
the General Counsel to look into when I talked to him on the 15th
of October. '

Senator METZENBAUM. But the fact is, you knew, when you asked
the General Counsel, that the memo that Mr. Allen had prepared
was not a complete memo. It did not include everything he had
told you. You knew there was more to it, You knew there was only
one line in the 7-page memo. If you had called Allen and asked
him, he would have told you, “T held back, I was a little concerned
about going too far,” Jjust as he told us on deposition. You did not
care. You deliberately did not care, did not want to know, closed
your ears, closed your eyes,

The next day you had a luncheon meeting with Lieutenant Colo-
nel North and Director Casey. You later testified to this Committee
that you asked Lieutenant Colonel North at this lunch if the CIA
was involved in the Hasenfus shoot-down. He told you the CIA was
f{lean of any involvement, an assurance that we now know to be a

ie.

As long as you were asking North about those activities, why did
you not ask him about Charlie Allen’s concerns regarding over-
charges to the Iranian middleman, and illegal diversion of profits
to the Contras? Did you not want to find out if Allen’s concerns
were valid?

Mr. Gates. My whole concern that day, Senator Metzenbaum,
was over the fact that there had been this huge uproar in the press
that morning because Mr. Hasenfus had said that he thought he
had been working for some CIA people. My whole concern was fo-
cused on the fact that Mr. Casey and I were going to come up here
to the Hill and talk to the leadership of the two Intelligence Com-
mittees, and it wag totally in the context of the Hasenfus plane
being shot down that I asked the question at all. And frankly, I did
not make the connection, or did not pursue that line of questioning
because it did not occur to me.

. What was foremost on my mind was to insure that CIA had not,
in fact, had any connection with the Hasenfus matter.
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Senator METzENBAUM. You testified that North made a cryptic
remark about a Swiss bank account at that lunch, I think you indi-
cated yesterday you should have asked more,

We all know that Swiss banks are used, almost by definition, by
Americans to shield depositors’ identity and the size of the account,

The question is, why did his remarks about the Swiss bank ac-
count and the Contras not alert you? This is your training. It
might not have alerted me or somebody else. But this is your train-
ing. It had to signal that he was involved in hiding money by using
Swiss bank accounts.

Now, first of all, did you not wonder how a Marine lieutenant
colonel would have access to such accounts? Or were you still ac-
tively avoiding knowing the facts? '

Mr. Gates. No, sir—again, it seemed to me that, to the degree
that I was able to make any sense out of what he said at all, it
must have had something to do with the private benefactors. It did
catch my attention. That is why I went back in and asked Mr,
Casey the question that I did.

Senator METzENBAUM. And then you just dropped it at that
point?

Mr. Gares. Yes, sir.

Senator METZENBAUM. In December 1986, you testified that you
had assurances from our people that they had kept their distance
from the private benefactors. In July 1987, in your deposition to
the Iran-Contra Committee, you testified, “I already had talked to
the people in our Directorate of Operations, and had received their
assurances that no one from CIA, no assets or proprietaries or any-
thing were involved.”

I wonder what you were told by your people that set your mind
at rest? I would like you to tell us exactly what you asked, and
from whom in the CIA you sought assurances. From what we now
know, Mr. George, Deputy Director for Operations, could not have
given you those assurances. The second chief of the Latin Ameri.
can Division is also alleged to have known about the diversion.
Alan Fiers, without being asked, had informed at least two other
superiors of the diversion, so it is unlikely he gave you assurances
that no one from CIA was involved. Joseph Fernandez, who was
Chief of Station in Costa Rica, was later indicted for cooperating
with r1):he private benefactors. Did he tell you he had kept his dis-
tance?

How could any of the people a prudent superior would have
asked given you assurances that your Agency was not involved?
Who gave you such assurances?

Mr. Gartes. On October the 9th, Senator, I believe I asked Mr.
George whether CIA had had any connection with the Hasenfus
matter at all, and received assurances that we had not.

Chairman Boren. Let me just interject for just a moment.

Senator Metzenbaum, I would suggest we might go on with one
more question and answer at this point. And then it would be my
Intention to take about a 5-minute recess. I have had discussion
with Senator Metzenbaum and other Members of the Committee.

Since others have not yet had a chance to have their opening
round of questions, we will then come back and the questioning
will begin with Senator Danforth. Is that agreeable to you, Senator



562

Danforth? Then we will proceed to Senator Bradley, who has been
notified that he will follow Senator Danforth. Then we will go to
Senator Rudman and that should take us about to the recess
during the lunch hour.

We will come back at 1:30. By my estimation, we have seven
Members of the Committee that have 30-minute rounds each which
would take us to approximately 5:00, if all the time were used.
That would enable all the Members of the Committee before we
complete business today at 5:00 to at least have their first round of
questions of the nominee.

If there is time remaining, and Senator Metzenbaum or others
have additional questions, we will return to that. As I have indicat-
ed previously, we will judge at that point whether we need to have
the nominee come back, whether later this week or next week,
since we will go to the outside witnesses on Thursday.

But this would at least allow all Members to have a chance to
have at least their opening round of questions with the nominee
before——

Senator METzENBAUM. I think the Chairman has been very fair,
and I certainly appreciate the courtesy extended to me this morn-
ing.

I will ask one more question,

Chairman Boren. Fine. We will have one more question. Then
we will have a short recess,

Senator METzENBAUM. On October 16, Charlie Allen met with
Mr. Casey again. And Casey instructed Mr. Allen to meet with
businessman Roy Furmark and find out what Furmark knew. He
had several meetings with Roy Furmark, where he learned more
details about the Khashoggi role with Ghorbanifar. George Cave
also went to one of those meetings.

Allen wrote memos to you, Casey, and Near East Division Chief
Tom Twetten regarding his conversations with Mr. Furmark.
Those memos gave further support to Mr. Allen’s concerns that
that Iranian operation’s security was in jeopardy because it was
overcharging. You have testified you never read those memos,

Do you mean to say that before November 25, you never both-
ered to ask Mr. Allen or Mr. Cave what they had learned? And I
will just follow that with a note that I think that has been your
indication in the past. And I guess I have difficulty—well, respond.
And then I will just finish my question.

Mr. GartEs. Senator, I left Washington for a trip to the Middle
East on the 17th of October, and did not return until the 30th.
Both of Mr. Allen’s meetings with Mr. Furmark occurred during
that period.

Within 3 or 4 days after I returned, the Iran initiative had been
leaked to a Beirut newspaper, and the total focus at that point
become the foreign policy consequences of this leak. And the total
focus, as I recall during that time, was on both the domestic and
the foreign policy consequences of this revelation.

Senator METZENBAUM. Well, on that trip you went with Mr.
Twetten, who had also been given a copy of Mr. Allen’s Qctober
14th memo to you and Casey about Ghorbanifar's threats to expose
U.S. and Israeli overcharges to the Iranians. You were with Mr.

_Twetten, I think 12 or 13 days, from the 17th to October 30th.
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You said in later testimony to this Committee you went on that
trip seeking a safety clime, meaning a sort of a refuge, to get away.

Does that mean that the number two man at the CIA wanted to
get away from the flak and not face the music? And furthermore,
since you went with Mr. Twetten, during those 13 days why did
you not ask him, talk to him about the memo? And how could you
avoid discussing it?

But tell me about the safety clime first.

Mr. GArTEs. Senator, I think in my confirmation hearing in Feb-
ruary 1987 I made the comment that I sought a safer clime. I think
that the expression taught me the consequences of trying a little
light humor in a confirmation. I was simply being flip, Senator,
during the hearing, making the comment about having left the
country. There was nothing more to it than that. '

Mr. Twetten—in response to the second part of your question—I
did not, and do not have recollection of discussing Mr. Allen’s
memorandum with Mr. Twetten. I believe Mr. Twetten recalls dif-
ferently, that we did talk about it on the trip.

Senator METZENBAUM. Mr. Chairman, I will be glad to await——

Chairman Boren. Thank you very much, Senator Metzenbaum.
Doq you still have some more questions you would like to ask later
on’

Senator MeTzENBAUM. Yes, sir.

Chairman BoreN. Very well, we will, after the very short recess,
return to the order with the other Members of the Committee in
30-minute rounds. We will take about a 5-minute recess.

[A brief recess was taken.)

Chairman Boren. We will resume at this point.

Is the microphone on? Here we go. We will resume. I think that
we should be able to finish the 30-minute rounds of questions from
the next three questioners in time for us to break for lunch at ap-
proximately 12:30. It would be my plan to resume at 1:30, because
that would give the potential to complete by 5:00 the seven others
who have not yet had their first 30-minutes rounds.

It is my hope that we can complete at about 500 in order to
allow those who need some time to travel to services to be there. So
we will have a rather short lunch break. This will help impose dis-
(ciipline on the Chair who is now beginning his 117th attempt to

iet.

We will now turn to the Senator from Missouri, Senator Dan-
forth, who is recognized for his round of questions.

Senator Danforth,

Senator DanForTH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Gates, I listened very carefully to Senator Metzenbaum’s
statement that, in his view, your position at the CIA was like the
three monkeys: hear no evil, see no evil, speak to evil.

Is is a fair statemnent that where there is any question about im-
propriety or illegal activity within the Agency your view is that
you do not want to know what is going on? Was that a fair state-
ment of your position?

Mr. Gates. Absolutely not, Senator Danforth.

As I indicated yesterday, within a day or two after becoming
Acting Director, information came to me suggesting the possibility
that some U.S. Government officials, and perhaps some CIA offi-



cers, had been engaged in arms sales to the Contras. That informa.
tion was characterized to me by people as hearsay, perhaps disip.
formation, and so on. It was my judgment that it warranted great.
er attention than that. And [ directed the individual, the head of
the other intelligence Agency, not only to brief the Attorney Gen.
eral, but the Secretary of State, Secretary of Defense, the acting
National Security Advisor, and the Chairmen of the two Intelli-
gence Oversight Committees. | believe that is characteristic of 5
Very aggressive approach toward looking into wrongdoing that
characterizes my performance-—certainly as Acting Director, and
also as Deputy Director under Director Webster.

the Agency’s files for them to get into.
hen inf_‘ormation first came to me that one of our officers had

terms of wrong-doing during that period. And frankly, I think my
whole career speaks to a willingness to speak my mind and say
what I think.

en I was a relatively new analyst in 1973, I wrote an article
for Studies in Intelli_gence that basically said the entire way we

Senator DANFORTH. 30-years old, and you were a junior person in
the Agency and you thought that the whole method of doing analy-
§is was incorrect?

Mr. Gates. | thought that there were serious shortcomings in the
way we went about it, yes, sir,

Senator DANFORTH. That was not the only time when you were
critical of existing ways of doing things, was it.

Mr.‘ Gates. No, sir, in fact when I became Deputy Director for

meéasures were very unpopular.

Senator DANFORTH. And in matters of policy, it has been my ob-
servation that you have not exactly been a shrinking violet as far
as stating your own views are concerned. I mean some people
might criticize what your views have been.

t is very interesting to me that some people attack you because
they say that your views might have been too strongly stated, par-
ticularly with respect to the U.S.S.R. And other people say, oh, you
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have politicized your views. I do not think you can have it both
ways.

You have been, have You not, at odds with various people in vari-
ous Administrations with respect to how your analysis sguares
with their policy? .

Mr. Gates. Yes, sir, that began when I was working with Dr,
Brzezinski on the NSC staff in the Carter Administration. It con.
tinued in the Reagan Administration, and even to an extent in this
one.

Senator DANFORTH. And you had a disagreement, did you not,
with Secretary Baker with respect to a speech on the future of Gor-
bachev?

Mr. Gares. I did have a speech prepared that I was told not to
give, yes, sir. '

Senator DANFORTH. Was that the subject of some disagreement?
Did you press forward and state your views with respect to Gorba-
chev and his situation?

Mr. Gargs. I certainly did so within the Administration, ves, sir.

of the Soviets that were not particularly well received.
Senator DANFORTH. And you also said in 1988, May of 1988 to the
Austin Foreigp Affairs Council that Gorbachev is setting loose

bring a fundamental and welcomed transformation of the Soviet
Union at home and abroad.

That turned out to be right, did it not?

Mr. Gargs, Yes, sir, I think so.

Senator DANFORTH, You said yesterday in your opening state-
ment that it is a humbling experience for an intelligence analyst,
yourself, to be wrong on the Soviet Union. But I think you said
some things that were right, before they happened.

In 1989, April 1989, you wrote “What Gorbachev has set in
motion represents a political earthquake. He is a figure of enor-
mous historical importance. The forces he has unleashed are pow-
erful, but so are the people and institutions he has antagonized,
thus setting in motion a tremendous power struggle.” That was 2
years before the event,

You were Cross-wise, were you not, with Secretary Weinberger
with respect to your analysis of Soviet military spending. Would
you tell us about that?

Mr. GATEs. The Agency’s analysts in, I think 1983, came to the
conclusion that the rate of growth of Soviet military spending had

tened altogether. This was at a time when we were engaged In a
fairly major military build-up.

I pressed the analysts very hard on this, partly because I was
fairly skeptical of some of our work on Soviet military spending to
begin with. But they persuaded me that they had a strong case,
and we published it. And it created something of a stir, certainly
here on the Hijl.
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: Sen_ator DANFORTH. What was your—what office did you hold at
t of t ch 1 capabilities, chemical warf ] © that time? :
pent of Soviet chemica apons capabilities < he po ca : Mr. GaTes. I was Deputy Direc_tor for Intel_hgence. And then aise

gon was seeking approval of binary chemical munitions up here ~ while I was Deputy Director of Contral Intelligence.

that also was regarded as—shall we say—an unfriendly act by the Senator DANFORTH. How about _with respect to verification of
Department of Defenge, arms agreements. Have you sometimes been at odds with the pol-
Senator DANForTH. Did they express that to you? lcymakers in that regard? )
Mr. GATEs, Yes, sir, they did. : r. GATES. Yes,_ th_ere h_ave been a number of occasions over the
Senator DANFORTH, Very forcefully? ) years where Wwe, 1n intelligence, have had a r'nore_skeptlcal' view
Mr. GATEs. Yes, sir, ~ both of compliance, but also of prospective verification capabilities
Senator DANFORTH. Secretary Weinberger, himself? in terms of agreements under negotiation that we have, | think,
Mr. GaTes. I don't know that he personally addressed it, but ] briefed candldly not only to the policymakers, but here on the hl_H.
know that gur analytical managers heard plenty about it: In fact, I believe Senator Nunn has made reference to that in
Senator DaNFORTH. And were you willing to hang in there with one of his appearances on television over the weekend. o
the analysis? . _ Senator DANFORTEH. I think, Mr. Gates, from your record it ig
Mr. GaTEs. Yes, sir, we published it and stood by it. clear that you are gz person who is independent and that you call
Senator DanrorTH Did you not also have a disagreement with them as you see them. Ang If the Secretary of State or the Secre-
Secretary Shultz with respect to Lebanon? tary of Defense have strong disagreements with you, that does not
Mr. Gates. We felt—I have always felt that the Agency and the slow you down at all. The idea that you are a person who just sort
Intelligence Community’s record back i 1982 and 1983 on Lebanon of keeps your head down, for whatever reason, is a totally wrong
was a very good record, and rankly something of a courageous Interpretation of who you are of who Bob Gates is
record. Because we were Very pessimistic about the prospects for et me ask you a question about how intelligence analysis fits In
the achievement of U S, objectives. In fact, ag [ indicated yesterday, with policymaking. T will Just give you one example that, to me, is
one of our estimates started ouf by saying that the prospects for an interesting example. ) ) _
the achievement of .S, objectives in Lebanon are bleak. ast winter, we were facing a vote in the Senate on the question
I remember at the National Foreign Intelligence Board meeting of whether to authorize the use of fOI‘Cﬁ-‘ against Irag—a very good
where that was considered one of the military intelligence repre- ebate, very hotly contested on both sides, good people expressing
sentatives spoke up and said he wanted to take a footnote. Anq | their points of view. And the key question that everybody was talk-
think Director Casey asked him why. And he said, well. [ think the Ing about was whether sanctions would work. Those who did not
first sentence ought to read the prospect for the achievement of want to use force argued that sanctions would work And other
on-existent. And we finally agreed people said no, that there was no way that sanctions were going to

enator DaNvorTH. How about with respect to the Philippines tlons would work, And I must say that for quite a period of time at
and the reforms of President Aquing? Is that another instance? least in my opinion, the briefings were of such a nature that any-
Mr. GaTEs. This is an area where I think that I probably proved body could read anything into the briefings. I mean you could hear

once and for all that if | have any skill, it’s 4

cer, and not as 5 diplomat, would say well, the view of these experts ig that sanctions are
I believed that however well-intentioned, and however fine a going to work. And somebody else would say well, sanctions are not
person Mrs. Aquino was, that she was not making the fundamental going to work. [ mean that is how I heard the briefing.

reforms and changes in the Philippines to both signiﬁcantlly ) ] ]
strengthen democracy, but more importantly address the economic hedged, or the analysis was being fuzzed up, or facts were being of.

and social problems of the country. And that it wag going to engen- fered which were not necessarily relevant to .determinir_lg whether

der further coup attempts, and future instability in the country. sanctions would work - nean we were really interested in whether
The Department of State, and Secretary Shultz in particular, had ground troops were going to Ieavg Kuwait because sanctions were

different view of that. In place. We were not interested in whether fortune cookies could
Senator DaNrorTH. Did they express that to you, their disagree- be bought in the stores of Baghdad.

ok that was one problem that I saw at that time, a I;mc} of
. ) ir, quite direct]y, murky analysis where anybody could Say anything as a result of it.
&Eﬁ?gﬁigﬁf&ﬁf_ I?Ilélwedj(lirfﬁaf happen? Then, after a lot of pressyre that was directed at the Agency, final-
Mr. GaTEs. Secretary Shultz personally told me that he thought ly the view was expressed, well sanctions are not likely to get Iraq

we were too pessimistic about the Philippines, and that the pros- out of Kuwait. I mean maybe they will hurt the economy, hurt the
pects there were much brighter. civilian population, hurt the air force; bhut they were not likely to

ment with you?




extract these embedded ground troops out of Iraq. That was a king
of bottom line, getting all the murkiness out of the analysis, and
giving us the bottom line.

As soon as that bottom line was expressed, immediately the re.
Joinder of those who had, in my opinion, made up their minds that
they were against the use of force, their immediate rejoinder wag
well, the CIA has become politicized. The CIA, the Director, wants
to cotton up to the President. They really want to say what Admin-
istrationl policy is, and Jjustify it. And therefore, this has no credibil-
ity at all.

So, what I am asking you is, how can you, as Director, give ys
information which is clear and useful as the basis of decisionmak.
ing, and at the same time, which is not going to be immediately
discounted as being simply a statement of Administration policy?

Mr. Gares. Senator, I think that the provision of briefings and

sure way of providing a safeguard on the integrity and objectivity
of analysis.

I personally think that the analysts and managers at CIA who
produce this intelligence do their level-best job to say exactly what
they think. Sometimes that is too obscure. Sometimes it ig not
clear. Sometimes there isn’'t a best judgment. Sometimes those
things aren’t possible in certain—in situations of great uncertainty.

But I think that there should be no question about their basic
integrity. But I think that provision of this material to the Con-
gress is one safeguard.

I think the other safeguard, frankly, is certainly referring to the
President who has nominated me, President Bush, is that this
President wants the material with the bark off. He wants to know
clearly the situation he is getting himself into. And I have never
heard him complain if the intelligence is in a different direction
than the policy is headed. He insists on having it that way. He oc-
casionally will get briefings by people who have a different point of
view.

So I think that the very nature of this President is a further as-
surance on that score.

And finally, 1 would say I think my own record as DDI, as Chair-
man of the National Intelligence Council, and as DDCI, in oversee-
ing the publication of intelligence that is challenging to Adminis-
tration policies, and my record of doing that—even before I became
DDI—and a willingness to speak my mind, should provide some as-
surance that I am willing to stand up and be counted, and stand up
and be heard.

And, you know, there are two aspects to this: one is the area that
you are talking about in terms of the substantive work of the
Agency. And I think that the record is clear of the Agency produc-
ing that kind of intelligence,

Now sometimes it has been wrong. And I think we should be
willing to admit that sometimes it has been wrong. But it was
honest. I remember one particular case, on Angola. One of the dis-
putes that I had with Secretary Shultz was over the Agency’s anal-
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ysis of Angola, and my belief that dos Santos, given the pressures
around him, was not interested in a negotiating process.

I think I was right in 1983, and 1984, and 1985 The fact that Mr.
dos Santos is in Washington today, seeing the President, suggests
that things change.

The other side of it is the side that Senator Metzenbaum raised.
And that is the question of wrongdoing, I've acknowledged that as
the new DDCI and having not served in the Clandestine Service,
that I moved slowly on matters, those first few months [ was DDCI.
And that I did not press hard enough.

But I think that the record is clear, that as Acting Director, as
Deputy under Director Webster, that I acted vigorously to deal
with questions of wrongdoing, and I would only refer the Commit-
tee to its Chairman and its former Vice-Chairman in terms of the

tions of possible wrongdoing or impropriety.

So I think, frankly, that the record is clear on both of those—
although I acknowledge that during those few months that I was
Mr. Casey’s Deputy, I moved too slowly in involving myself on clan-
destine matters. But I think in both of these areas, and your line of
questioning has brought out the intelligence side. _

Senator DaNForRTH. Mr. Chairman, T do not know how long 1
have been going on.

Chairman Boren. You have about 6 more minutes.

Senator DANFORTH. Okay.

You are very close to President Bush. You have worked in the
White House now for some time. He is a person who has served in
the job for which you have been nominated. He is a person who is
very knowledgeable about foreign affairs.

At first blush, it would appear to be a great advantage to have a
Director of Central Intelligence who has a close, working familiari-
ty with the President of the United States. I suppose that those
who are concerned, particularly about politicization, could be fear-
ful that maybe being close has its advantages, but it also has its
disadvantages.

You have said that in your working with the President he wants
analysis with the bark off He wants objectivity. Do you believe
that as Director of Central Intelligence you would be in any way
coopted by virtue of your past relationship with the President?

: Mr. GATEs. No, sir, I don't. I ve written—in some ways, this is in

One part of that view is that you remain at a distance, and that
a distance is the best place in which you can protect your objectivi-
ty and your integrity, and so forth. Speaking a little perjoratively,
those are the circumstances under which you basically throw the
intelligence that you think you ought to be doing over the transom,
and hope that it bears some faint resemblance to something that
somebody in the policy community may be interested in.

But the likelihood of being able to actually provide intelligence
that is of value in the day-to-day decisionmaking is remote, If the
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Intelligence Community is, itself, remote from the policy communi-
ty.

I have the other view. My view has been all along, from the very
beginning of my career—and perhaps it is due to the fact that I
have served on the NSC—that the Intelligence Community has to
be right next to the policymaker, that he has to be at his elbow.
That he has to understand what is on his mind. He has to under-
stand what his future concerns are. He has to understand what his
agenda is. He has to understand some of the initiatives that he's
thinking about taking. He has to be willing to ask the policymaker
what he’s working on, or what came out of his last conversation
with a world leader so that the intelligence can be made relevant;
s0 that the director, or the office director, or whatever level with a
corresponding policy officer can go back and give guidance to the
analysts. These are the questions that they are asking. This is what
is of interest to them. This is when the briefing book closes. The
President is going to take this trip. These are the kinds of issues
that are going to be addressed.

I think that having a Director who has a close, personal relation-
ship with the President offers a unique opportunity for the Intelli-
gence Community to provide relevant intelligence and sharper in-
telligence to the policy process—and frankly, also, to the Congress.

Senator DANFOrTH. Let me just ask one more question. Now Mr.
Gates, it is the reverse of the prior one, not so much how you deal
v&}rlitl_u people up the chain, but how you deal with people down the
cnam.

In one of the newspaper articles—I think it was a New York
Times article this past week—some unknown person said that you
were capable of intimidation. In receiving your own information,
how do you deal with people who are down the line from you? Is
the CIA going to be—under your directorship—is it simply going to
be a rationalization for Bob Gates’ basic view of the world? How do
you guard yourself against maybe not being open to what the
thoughts, and what the advice and the analyses are of people who
are working in the Agency?

Mr. GaTtes. Well, Senator, I would concede that I am probably
not the easiest person in the world to work for. I am fairly demand-
ing. And I am probably, at times, more direct than I might be in
terms of people’s egos.

But fundamental to my approach to analysis, and it begins with
the article that I wrote in 1973, is my belief that the policymaker
must be exposed to alternative points of view; that all points of
view have to be heard, and they have to be presented.

And I—on this—T'll give you one example that happened, that I
was reminded of just the other day by the former Director of Soviet
Analysis. It concerned the question of the possibility of unilateral
Soviet cuts. This was 2 or 3 years ago—maybe 3 years ago—and
was testifying before this Committee, and expressing my view that
I didn’t think it would happen. And then Mr. MacEachin came in,
was late to the hearing, and I invited him to come to the table and
express his view, and the Office of Soviet Analysis view, which was
precisely the opposite, that they thought that the Soviets would
offer some unilateral cuts. They were right, and I was Wrong.
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But I have always believed in alternative analysis. I believe that
if you look at the record of intelligence failures over the last 20
years, in virtually every instance, it is because there was a single-
outcome forecast. It is going to be X or Y or Z, instead of telling
the policymaker—look, we really don’t know how this is going to
come out. Here are the possibilities, and here is our best estimate.

One of the major initiatives that I had when I was Deputy Direc-
tor for Intelligence was getting CIA analysts out of the building
and talking to other experts outside of CIA, outside of the U.S.
Government, specifically telling them to go talk to people that they
knew disagreed with them. That's my view of how the intelligence
business ought to be run; and it's my view on how I ought to do my
own work.

We are going to end up talking here about some papers, at some
point, particularly with respect to the attempted assassination of
the Pope. It was in connection with that paper that I, then, ordered
one of the officers to write an attack on the paper we had just pub-
lished. And then asked the product evaluation staff to go back and
review the entire record of how we had done on that problem.

So I—the way I would characterize myself is as a person who has
strong views, but 1 am open to different interpretations. And I also
recognize, and am willing to acknowledge, when I have been
wrong.

Senator DanrortH. Thank you, Mr. Gates. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Chairman BoreN. Have you completed, Senator Danforth?

Senator DanrorTH. Yes.

Chairman BoreN. Our next questioner for a 30-minute round of
questions will be Senator Bradley, the Senator from New Jersey.

Senator Bradley.

Senator BrRapLEy. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, Mr. Gates, yesterday you were rather disarming
in admitting error when you said you should have taken more seri-
ously the possibility of impropriety or even wrongdoing when you
said that you should have been more skeptical; when you said you
should have pressed harder.

And I am just curious now, 5 years later, as you reflect on those
failures, tell me why do you think they occurred? In other words,
what part of you did not assert itself?

Mr. Gates. I think I was too cautious in approaching the Clan-
destine Service, Senator, and also in deferring to Mr. Casey’s spe-
cial relationship with the Clandestine Service. Having grown up in
a different culture, in the analytical culture, knowing that there
were some sirains, and perhaps even a measure of mistrust of me
in the Clandestine Service, I paid attention to other aspects of the
work, and did not press these issues.

I think that if one of the—I think the salient lesson that I
learned out of Iran-Contra was that other parts of the Intelli-
gence Community can cause controversy. But it seems like the
Clandestine Service is the only part that can cause real trouble.
And therefore, that what I described as the unique relationship be-
tween previous DCI's and the Clandestine Service, in fact on reflec-
tion, I think is an understanding of that, of what I've just described
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on the part of those Directors, and the need to pay special atten-
tion to the Clandestine Service.

Senator Brabrey. But looking at yourself, really, and being 3
little introspective, what do you think it was a failure of?

Mr. Gates. Well, Senator, I can describe a lack of aggressiveness
with respect to the Clandestine Service at that time. I don't see it
as a reflection of some sort of deeper, personal problem, or issue, if
you will. I don’t think that the characterizations that I was con-
cerned for my career are accurate, for example. As far as I was
concerned, I had reached the high point of my career. I had never
expectfgd to get that high in the Agency. So I don’t think that was
part of it.

Senator BRapLEY. Well, the reason I ask is to see how you've re-
flected on it, and what conclusions you've learned and what you
have drawn for yourself from the experience.

Mr. Gates. Well, I've indicated yesterday, and I think today, cer-
tainly the specific lessons in terms of Iran-Contra, and I think also
indicated that I began to apply those lessons very quickly after the
Iran-Contra matter happened. It also, I think, was reflected in the
fast that I, as Acting Director, engaged myself much more in the
Clandestine Service at that time.

Senator BrapLey. Qkay.

When George Shultz appeared before Iran-Contra, the Commit-
tee, he said that he had grave doubts about intelligence coming
from the CIA, long before the arms sales and diversion. Now, what
do you think he was referring to?

Mr. Gares. I think he was referring to the Philippines, to
Angola, to a degree to the Soviet Union—some of the issues that
Senator Danforth raised.

Senator BRADLEY. If we could, I would like to go back to what
was basically the strategic rationale for the Iran-Contra operation,
SNIE 3484, which

Mr. GatEs. Yes, sir.

Senator BRADLEY [continuing]. Which, as you know, we have
talked about this on previous occasions.

This was really initiated by the National Intelligence Officer for
the Near East and Southeast Asia. But you were the manager of
the memorandum. And this was a memorandum that basically
stated that Soviet inroads were being made in Iran. And excluded
from the final memorandum was both the Soviet section of the
CIA, and the Iranian section of the State Department.

So a memorandum was produced that excluded certain key con-
tributors to the process. About 1 month later, in June of 1985, the
Soviets removed the remaining 1,000 technicians; they ceased all
deliveries, and they reaffirmed their insistence on Iranian negotia-
tions with Iraq, as the way for improved relations.

Yet, this estimate really was not changed until February 1986,
How do you explain that? And in the interim, of course, Iran-
Contra was born.

Mr. Gates. Yes, sir,

Senator, the estimate that was produced at the end of May 1985
was one of a series on conditions in Iran, and Iranian foreign
policy. An earlier one had been done in October 1984, and as you
have suggested, there was another in February 1986.
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This estimate had two fundamental points: one was that the in-
ternal situation in Iran was worse than people had anticipated, and
raised the possibility of significant tumult before Ayatollah Kho-
meini died; the other was that these conditions created the circum-
stances in which the Soviets might make significant in-roads at the
expense of the West and the United States, in particular.

The first of those points was a direct outgrowth of an estimate,
or of an assessment done by a Directorate of Intelligence analyst in
late March of 1985, in terms of—and, in fact, the person who wrote
the March DI assessment is the same one who was the drafter of
the SNIE.

The second point really was an outgrowth of several events that
had been reported in mid-May in the National Intelligence Daily,
and they included—that included the fact that Khomeini had sent
an emissary to, or sent a message to the Soviet leadership, to Gor-
bachev, urging an improvement in relations. The Iranians had
gone through the Syrians to the Soviets to try and get weapons.
And they had also gone through the Syrians to try to get access to
the KGB to find out the reaction to the original Khomeini message
to Gorbachev,

So there were several things happening that gave the NIO and
others some sense that the Soviets were going to press ahead.

When the estimate was brought to the National Foreign Intelli-
gence Board, there was only one issue at the Board, according to
the records of the meeting. And that was the representative of the
Bureau of Intelligence and Research at the State Department felt
that the estimate over-stated the seriousness of the internal situa-
tion in Iran. The issue at the NFIB meeting was not the Soviet sit-
uation, but the internal situation in Iran. And there was a lot of
going back and forth on that particular issue.

There was a disagreement, I later learned, in CIA with the esti-
mate’s views on the Soviet—the potential for Soviet achievement.
But the analysts weren’t excluded from involvement in the esti-
mate. They simply did not have their views accepted. And for rea-
sons that are not clear to me, those analysts not only did not come
to me, they did not go to their immediate supervisor, the Director
of Soviet Analysis, to protest that their views were not being taken
fully into account by the National Intelligence Officer. So I was un-
aware of this dispute, and the fact that the CIA Soviet Analysts
felt their views hadn’t been fully taken into account.

Senator BRADLEY. And that’s why there was no alternative view
presented?

Mr. GATEs. On the Soviet issues, yes, sir.

Senator BRADLEY. And why on the Iranian issue was there no al-
ternative view?

Mr. Gates. There was a long discussion at the Board meeting
about that; some changes were proposed in the language to try and
satisfy the INR representative. I spoke about it. Mr. McMahon
spoke. General Odom of NSA spoke. I think the Director spoke—all
trying to say don’t the changes that we've made accommodate the
view that you all have?

The INR representative said no. And Mr. Casey said fine, take
your footnote. I think at some point, after that, I'm—my own
memory is vague on it—but I apparently called Ambassador
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the fi tnote that—the ‘change that had been made’in the estimate
wag sufficient that the footnote was kind of pointless.

Senator BRADLEY. But you did call and urge him not to put the
footnote in?

Mr. GATEs. Apparent.ly 80, and I was successful in persuading
him that it was not—did not add to the policymakers’ knowledge
on this matter.

Senator BRADLEY. So that there was no alternative view present-

Mr. Gares. That is correct, Because I felt that the view that they
had, as they had written thejr footnote, reaily didn’t represent an
altseernatweriew. _

nator BRaprLey. Do you think that in retrospect you i
or l\\avroxég to do that? v pect you were right
r. GATES. Well, normally, my practice was to encourage foot-
notes, although I did, on occasion, call people to try and disfourage
footnotes that I thought were frivolous, or did not help the policy-
makers’ understanding of the problem.

Frankly, it was a matter that was of not very much importance
to me from a ’substantive standpoint. And I believe that there cer-
tam,ly wouldn’t have been any harm in having the footnote. But I
don’t think, based on my recollection, that it would have advanced
the cause very much.

nator BraprLey. Okay, I would like to move, if
role of the DCI. 7 " 1 could, to the
Do you agree that the DCI and CIA should not publicize one-
sided views of strategic issues?

Mr. Garss. Yes, sir.

Sepgtor BrapLEY. Do you agree that the DCI and CIA should not
publicize, or should not participate as advocates in policy debates?

Mr. Garrs. Yes, sir.

Senator BrapLEY. So you agree with President Bush who is a
former DCI in enjoining the DCI and the CIA from even appearing
to take sides in policy debates?

Mr. GATEs. Yes, sir.
 Senator BRrADLEY. If that is all true, what I would like you to do
18 to explain the speech you made to the World Affairs Council in
Northern California on November 25, 1986, which was a real piece
of advocacy for SDI. And | would like to focus, in particular on the
basis for some of the things that you said in that speech.

In the speech, it is true, is it not, that you publicly predicted that
a Soviet ground-based laser device would be tested in the 1980°s at
high energy levels that would show the feasibility of ballistic mis-
sile defenses?
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Mr. Gates. I assume you have the text in front of you, so I'll
agree,

Senator BRADLEY. Okay.

Senator DaNFORTH. Mr. Chairman, could he be given the text so
that !}1e does not have to agree with something he has no idea
about’

Senator BRADLEY, Well, let me repeat the sentence.

Chairman Boren. Perhaps the Senator could read it.

Senator DANFORTH. Mr. Chairman, I wonder if he could be given
the entire text so he could see it?

Chairman Bogrgn. Is the Senator willing to have him have that?

Senator BRADLEY. What is the time, Mr. Chairman? I have a
whole series, and I would be willing to give him the text of the
speech and come back to this subject in the next round.

Chairman Boren. You about 20 more minutes.

Senator BrapLEy. I would be pleased to give it to him. He can
have it. I am sure he has it in his file, This is something we have
talked about before. And he can look at it in full, and I will come
back to this subject in the next round.

Chairman BoreN. Does the nominee feel he is familiar enough
with the speech if Senator Bradley would quote from it, or read
parts of it?

Mr. GaTes. 1 appreciate what Senator Danforth said. But I think
we can go ahead.

Chairman Boren. He thinks he can go ahead. Why do you not
read from it, and then if there is a point that he needs to see, we
can hand it back and forth, anyway.

Senator BRaDLEY. Okay,

You say we expect the Soviets to text the feasibility of ground-
based lasers for defense against ballistic missiles by the late 1980's,
and could begin testing components for a large-scale deployment
system in the 199(’s.

So the question is, were you wrong? Did any such test take place
in the 1980’s?

Mr. GaTes. I don’t know the answer to that, Senator. I'd have to
check. I gather from the nature of your question that it probably
didn’t. But I'd have to check to make sure.

Senator BranLey. Okay, well take my word. [General laughter.]

Was your unqualified prediction here based upon a full reading
of all of the intelligence information available to you? Were there
any uncertainties that you glossed over?

Mr. Gates. Senator, it is worth taking, I think just a moment, to
describe how I developed the speeches. Because I assume that you
are going to have some other questions about them.

My speeches would begin by gathering information from the in-
telligence product. I would gather intelligence assessments, current
intelligence, and so on. And then from that, develop a speech
which I would then share—I would share the draft with various an-
alysts and managers in the Agency to get their views, and see
whether I was in the ballpark.

The particular speech that you're talking about on the Soviet
SDI program, Soviet Air Defense and Strategic Defense program, I
drew from a DIA white paper, an unclassified DIA paper on Soviet
SDI and strategic defense from the current issue of Soviet Military
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Power, and from a White Paper prepared by a CIA analyst in the
Office of Scientific and Weapons Research. T didn't make that stuff
up. I guarantee you, I wouldn’t know a ground-based laser from a
shoe-shine box. But—so that material was drawn, presumably,
from one of those papers.

Senator BrapLEY. But it was a very strong case of advocacy for a
billion, billion, billions of dollars of defense expenditures,

Mr. Gares. What T was trying to do in that speech, Senator, was
outline what I believed to be the comprehensive nature of the
Soviet Strategic Defense Program, the degree to which they had
spent, themselves, many tens of billions of dollars on strategic de-
fense, in a situation that left them potentially with a strategic ad-
vantage over the United States, because they had a strategic de-
fense, however flawed, and we had none.,

Senator BrabLey. My point is really not to debate SDI but to ask
you why you choose to emphasize the more alarming aspects of the
intelligence information, as opposed to the more reassuring aspects
of the intelligence information. There were embodied in the intelli-
gence information a lot of reassuring aspects that would not lead
one to the conclusion that you drew and that you spoke publicly
about the need to build the SDI in the United States or about
Soviet development.

So my question to you is why did you choose to strike the more
alarming pose, as opposed to the more reassuring pose. Was it that
you just felt very strongly about this, or was it that you were, es-
sentlally, trying to support an Administration’s policy view?

Mr. GaTes. I was not intentionally trying to support the Admin-
istration’s specific policy. The SDI program idea was more than 3
years old by that time.

What I was trying to do was highlight an area of Soviet advan-
tage that I thought had not received sufficient attention prior to
that time. I may have erred on the side of focusing on the concerns.
But it was a speech that, as I say, was shared with a number of
analysts within the Agency before T gave it.

Senator BraDpLEY. So, would you today say that you think that
was a mistake to have done?

Mr. GATes. Senator, one area where I have changed my views
since we last had a dialogue on this subject in February, 1987, has
to do with speeches by the DCI, substantive speeches.

I believe that occasionally those speeches have value. I think
that the speech that either Admiral Inman or John McMahon gave
in the early 1980°s about technology transfer was an important
contribution. I think that the speech that Judge Webster gave
about proliferation was important. But, by and large, I think that
the DCI should avoid giving substantive speeches, particularly
those where there is a risk of the speéech being misinterpreted as
advocacy of a policy.

I think that the DCI should speak publicly. But I think he should
speak about intelligence issues and try and inform the American
people. This is an area where I, frankly, have changed my view and
belileve that such, that substantive speeches should be given spar-
ingly.

Senator BRADLEY. So you wouldn’t do that again?

Mr. Gates. No, sir. I don’t think I would.
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Senator BRADLEY. I'd like to turn to Iraq, if I could.

Could you give me the intelligence basis for the Administration’s
response to the gassing of the Kurds? Do you recall, August, 19887

Mr. Gares. My recollection, Senator, was that the intelligence
was pretty good that the Iraqis had, in fact, gassed a number of
Kurdish villages. I think there was some controversy over the
nature of the gas and how lethal it was and so on. I'm trying—it's
a little vague.

Senator BrapLEY. What was the basis for the kind of lukewarm
response, I mean, you know, opposing it but, at the same time, not
opposing it strongly?

Was there a basis in intelligence for that? Was there something
about Iraq?

Mr. GaTes. Not that I'm aware of, Senator.

Se;nator BrabLEY. So there was no intelligence basis for the posi-
tion?

Mr. Gatges. I think that the intelligence was fairly clear that
there had been a gassing.

Senator BRADLEY. But in terms of the policy response here?

Mr. Gates. Well, I'm not quite sure what you're asking me.

Senator BRADLEY, Well, let’s go down. Let’s do another one and
you'll get the drift.

We passed an amendment here in the Congress in, I think, 1988,
that applied unilateral sanctions to Iraq. This was, 1 think, after
the gassing. The Administration fought to delete those unilateral
sanctions in the conference, and succeeded in doing so.

Was there an intelligence basis for the effort to delete unilateral
sanctions against Saddam Hussein?

Mr. GarEs. No, sir. I don’t think so.

Senator BRADLEY. So the effort to delete them was not based
upon any information about his intentions?

Mr. Gates. I think it was based on policy considerations.

Senator BRADLEY. Now, could you tell me, in 1988, Iraq routed
Iran, if you recall, and you were the Deputy DCI at that time. Is
that not correct?

Mr. GatEs. Yes, sir.

Senator BraDLEY. Isn’t it true that you refocused collection and
analytical resources away from Iraq toward other issues and areas
of concern after that routing?

Mr. GATES. Once that war was over, we probably did do some
reallocation of resources. Yes, sir.

Senator BrRabpLEY. So you moved them away from watching Irag
and the Persian Gulf to other areas.

Mr. Gares. Our concentration on the Iran-Iraq War had imposed
some limitations on our satellite capabilities in terms of some long-
standing problems in the Soviet Union and elsewhere. And so, the
war was over, we tried to address some of those issues and prob-
lems.

Senator BRADLEY. And as the Chairman of the NSC’s Deputies
Committee, you were responsible for policy guidance and tasking of
the Intelligence Community. Is that not correct?

Mr. Gates. Not in that kind of direct chain of command way.
Certainly, the Deputies Committee, Mr. Kerr, the Deputy Director
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of Central Intelligence, sits as a member of that group and partici-
pates in its deliberations,

- Senator BRADLEY. What I'm getting at is here was the end of the
war, Iraq was still a problem, at this point admittedly the most

OW, my gquestion to you is was that a wise thing to have done?

Mr. GarTgs. I believe the intelligence assessment that was done in
1989, Senator Bradley, stated the view that Saddam Hussein and
Irag would be spending the next several years more likely than not
engaged in rebuilding. Irag had taken & fairly heavy pounding in
the war, even though they won it and had the kind of capabilities
that you're describing. But there was an intelligence assessment
that suggested that they would be focused on rebuilding for the
next 3 to 5 years and not turning toward external aggression.

Senator BrabLky. And that it was likely that they would not use
military force?

Mr. GarEs. Yes, sir.

Senator BRADLEY. Were you responsible for directing this?

Mr. Gartes. That assessment?

Senator BRapLEY. Uh-huh.

Mr. Gares. No, sir. I don't think so.

Senator BRADLEY. In terms of coordinating it at the NSC?
N éV(I}r. Gates. No, sir. Those assessments are not coordinated at

Senator BRADLEY. Let me ask you, aside from the CIA’s unau-
thorized role in the shipping of U.S. made/Izraeli owned arms to
Iran in 1985, have you been aware of any other covert activities by
the CIA that were not authorized by a Presidential Finding?

Mr. GaTes. No, sir. I don't believe so.

Senator BRADLEY, When you were the Deputy DCI, were you re-
sponsible for: the activities by the CIA to implement thgz Admi_nis-

Iran in the spring of 19867

Mr. GATes. I certainly was aware of the passage or sharing of in-
telligence with Iraq. Yes, sir.

Senator BRADLEY. And you were responsible for the CIA portion?
v Mr. GaTes. It was undertaken by the Directorate of Intelligence.

es, sir,

Senator BRADLEY, Were these activities confined to intelligence
sharing intended solely for obtaining necessary intelligence under
the terms of the law?

Mr. Gates. I think that in the context of the broader liaison rela-
tionship that, as that has traditionally been interpreted, that the
materials that were provided fell within the context of that liaison
relationship.

Senator BrapLEY, Would you describe to me your understanding
of the law at that time, the go-called Hughes-Ryan Amendment.

Mr. Gates. My understanding, Senator, is that the law is fairly
vague on, as it pertains to liaison relationships.

nator BRADLEY. So what is your understanding of the law as to
what was allowed?
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Mr. Gates. My understanding is certainly the view in the
Agency at the time was that the material that was provided to Iraq
was allowed within the context of the law and—

Chairman Boren. Let me caution both the witness and the ques-
tioner that we are verging on classified information in terms of
that which we cannot discuss in open session. I think we all realize
that we will discuss in closed session any matter of sharing of any
intelligence. Getting down to the specific substance of what intelli-
gence was shared or not shared with any other country, we have to
be very cautious about discussing that in open session. So T would
ask both of you, if you could, to keep your comments in the ab-
stract and not related to particular matters of what might or might
not have been shared with any particular country. If we could,
keep it to the abstract question and the question of law. _

Pardon the interruption. I may have broken the chain of
thought. ) _

Senator Bradley, do you want to restate your question? I think
I've broken the chain of thought here. ]

Senator BRapLEY. Mr. Chairman, I recognize that much of this
will be discussed next week in the closed session. But_ I was just
trying to get Mr. Gates’ view of what the law meant, since he was
the operational person, the Deputy Director at the time.

Mr. GaTEs. Yes, sir. ) _

My understanding was that the material that was being provided
was allowed under the law. ]

Senator BRaprey. Can you, in your own mind, be absolutely clear
that there was no covert action? ) .

Mr. Gatgs. I believe that there was not under the interpretation
of that law.

Senator BRADLEY. Well, we can’t go any further here,

My half hour is up, Mr. Chairman, though I do have a couple of
other areas. .

Chairman Boren. Why don’t you go on for another 5 minutes.
It’s understandable that we may have to come back to several Sen-
ators for more questions.

Senator BRADLEY. Okay. i

Another area of real importance in the world, of course, in the
new world, is China. I recall an exchange we had bgck in 1986, in
the Committee, when I think Defense Secretary Weinberger and I
think Roz Ridgeway and General Perroots and a number of other
people were testifying and you were testifying. We were talking
about the Soviet Union, and I basically asked you well, you know,
let’s throw conventional wisdom aside. Can you imagine any kind
of significant change in the Soviet Union? What kind of mtelli-
gence data, what kind of work should the Iqtelllgenc_e Community
be doing to equip policy makers with the information that they
might need if that event took place? _ )

In 1986, you responded, “Quite frankly, I am without any hint
that such fundamental change is going on. My resources do not
permit me the luxury of sort of Jjust idly speculating on what a dif-
ferent kind of Soviet Union might look like.”

Now, a lot of water is under the bridge. Things have happened.

Here is another Communist nation, China. Will you be idly spec-
ulating with China? Will you be trying to think through what hap-



580

pens there? What have you learned from your kind of reticence to
entertain the unthinking at a time when conventional wisdom said
it was unthinkable and then finding that it became reality?

Mr. GartEs. Senator, I think it did not take until 1991 to pick up
on your suggestion, and I think we did go out subsequently, per-
haps not immediately, and began talking about different kinds of
futures for the Soviet Union. I think that a couple of papers were,
in fact, commissioned along those lines.

Clearly, I think that we've all learned some important lessons
from the events of the last 3 or 4 years in terms of thinking the
unthinkable. And, clearly, we need to be thinking about alternative
futures for China ag weﬁ. I think that that work should be under
way if it is not already under way.

Senator BRADLEY. But my question to you is what would you do
differently now to catch that kind of change in China that you did
not catch in the Soviet Union?

Mr. GaTes. Part of the problem is being able to measure broad,
popular sentiment and overall conditions in a country that is fun-
damentally a difficult place in which to travel or to gather infor-
mation or to talk to people.

Now I know lots of travelers go to China. Lots of travelers went
to the Soviet Union. But it certainly is an environment in which
people are afraid to talk and often afraid to be candid.

I think more can be done through expanded human intelligence
collection. I think part of what can be done is simply to insure that
people are thinking about these problems, that they are sitting
down and trying to identify here are what the different alternative
paths may be historically for this country and here are the indica-
tions of what we might see if the country were moving in one or
another of those paths. Those indications would then perhaps pro-
vide a guide for collection.

I think we did some of that on the Soviet Union, almost certainly
not encugh,

Senator BRADLEY. So more broad path analysis?

Mr. Gates. Yes, sir, and I think alse more human intelligence
collection.

Senator BrapLEy. If could, on the issue of economic intelli-
gence, do you think that we should do more economic intelligence?

Mr. Gartes. I think that economic intelligence, Senator, is some-
thing where we need to proceed with some care. | know that
there’s a lot of concern about doing industrial espionage, if you
will, and I, frankly, don’t think that US. intelligence should be en-
gaged in that.

I think there are two areas where we should do economic intelli-
gence. One is in gathering and reporting information where other
countries are not playing by the international rules, where they
are colluding with their industry in ways that disadvantage U.S.
industry unfairly—in other words, collecting and reporting infor-
mation that will help our policy makers level the playing field in a
policy sense.

The second area where I think we ought to be aggressive and
even more aggressive than we are is in responding to the actions of
foreign intelligence services directed against U.S. companies and
U.8. technology. We know that foreign intelligence services plant
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moles in our high tech companies. We know that they rifle brief-
cases of our businessmen who travel in their countries. We know
that they collect information on what we're doing, and I think that
CIA and the FBI, working together, should have a very aggressive
program against it. .

So those are the two areas where I think we need to be more ag-
gressive in economic intelligence. )

Senator BRADLEY. If I could, other than former Communist coun-
tries, for how many countries do you have evidence of such espio-
nage against U.S. businessmen? )

Mr. Gares. Well, I will check, but I can think of two off the top
of my head. .

Senator BRADLEY. Okay. I think that’s right. ‘ ‘

Now, let me ask you, when you talk about economic espionage,
you are not talking about the service being used to ferret out com-
mercial secrets for the benefit of American companies?

Mr. GaTEs. No, sir. I don’t think that’s an appropriate role. )

In fact, a case officer once told me, he said, “I’m_ not ’fifrald to
risk my life for the United States, but I won’t do it for”’ and he
mentioned a U.S. company.

Senator BRaDLEY. That makes two of us, Mr. Gates.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman BoreN. Thank you very much, Senator Bradley. _

There is one question I would like to interject really for the point
of information. One of the purposes of this hearing, or I might say
one of the opportunities, not a purpose, of this hearing is not only
to examine the qualifications of thig nominee and to look ahead in
terms of the future of U.S. intelligence, but it provides an opportu-
nity I think all of us welcome, both on the Oversight Comml_ttee
and in the Intelligence Community, to try to educate the American
public about the nature of intelligence. )

I'm sure that those who have watched these proceedings over the
last several hours have gained some new insight into the intelli-
gence process. This is very healthy. This is, as the nominee has
said, a process for which the American taxpayers are footing the
bill.

Therefore, it is very appropriate that they should learn as much
about this process as we can possibly make available to them. _

In the course of your testimony—Senator Nunn and I were dis-
cussing this—very often you've talked about the clandestine serv-
ice, the Directorate of Operations and you’ve talked about the ana-
lytical side, the Directorate of Intelligence.

One of the things that I certainly was not fully aware of when I
came on this Committee was the distinct difference of the two. I
thought of the CIA as being the CIA, a more or less monolithic in-
telligence community. ' )

I wonder if you might describe the roles and functions very brief-
ly of the two. You referred to the two cultures at one point in time.

Mr. Gates. Yes.

Chairman BoreN. But I'm not sure that those who have been gb-
serving us outside the community really ‘understand what we're
talking about. I think it would be helpful Jjust to put that into the
record so that people can have an understanding of that as we pro-

ceed. What are the differences between the two sides of the
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Agency? In essence, what are their different roles? Therefore, what
are the kinds of abilities and capabilities that people tend to have
on the two sides of the service?

Mr, Gares. I might just start, Mr. Chairman, by saying there are
four Directorates in CIA: one for administration, one for Science
and Technology, one for Operations and one for Intelligence,

The Operations Directorate is charged, primarily, with the clan-
destine collection of human intelligence. This is the Directorate
that sends case officers overseas and is really the home of what
most people generally think of when they think, frankly, of CIA
and intelh'g_encge in general. That's the 8py business: recruiting

directorate is also responsible for implementing covert action and
for carrying out covert actions. That can be as simple as political
action, to help a country where one of our adversaries is funding a
ruling party and we’re trying to get elections started and trying to
help a democratic force. It can be actions relating to terrorism and
s0 on—but, in any event, the implementation of covert action.

The Directorate of Intelligence is responsible for gathering intel-
ligence information from s variety of different sources, Human in-
telligence is one, but also diplomatic reporting, information from
technical sources, photographic satellites and others, overt informa-
tion from foreign broadcasts and Journalists, journalism, newspa-
pers and so on-—integrating all of that information and reporting
its finding to the policy community and to the Congress,

So its basic role is an analytical one. ‘

Most of the people—until recently, until fairly recently, there

even not the highest regard for each other.,

But I think that has begun changing over the last several years.
As I indicated, one of the things that I did as DDI that I was proud-
est of was recruiting Bob Ames to be head, from the clandestine
service, to head the Near East office on the analytical side.

the area, can’t have.

By the same token, the analysts often have a much broader back-
ground in the history of that country or of the region. So each
brings very different strengths to the intelligence process.

The effort to get them to cooperate more closely has been ongo-
ing for a number of years, but I would say has really made head-
way perhaps just in the last 8 years or so. :

airman BoreN. I think that’s useful to know. You're dealing
obviously with very different types of personalities, The training on
the analytic side is primarily what we view as more academically
oriented training, more or less like an academic discipline, I would
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. Some of us have had the opportunity to see some of our
jglfrt?;'r ngw(,)v operations officers and recruits being trained on every-
thing to how you communicate surreptitiously and other thln',g:s(i ¢

So am I right to say that usually you find very different k;n S ot
personalities in the two fields as well, people with very differen
kinds of inclinations about what they like to do?

Mr. GaTEs. That is ofte:i1 the case. Yes, lim

i REN. Thank you very much. _ .

F}le?alflrtn?g gl?'n now to clg;;e out our morning session to Senator
Rl}fe??rlllé just say, as a matter of scheflule, vafhen we come baclé this
afternoon at approximately 1:30, we'll begin with Senatoa Ii;an-
ston, and this will be the order: Senator Cranston, Senator $ or gn,
Senator DeConcini, Senator D’Amato, Senator Glenn, Senator
Chafee, and then Senator Hollings will complete our afternoo_nhsis-
sion. Then, if there are any problems or if any of those Wlsl o}
make changes in times or exchange with another Senator, please

let me know. q
Senator Rudman. ‘
Senator WARNER. Senator Rudman, would you yield to me for

inute? )
Ongeﬁlautl(;lrt RubpMAN. I'd be pleased to yield to the Senator from Vir-
ginia for a ‘gvninute. Thank very much
nator WARNER. Thank you y . )

Sgngtor Bradley led off his line of questioning asking you a]_::;(zut
the misjudgments that you have freely disclosed to the Co}inm% ttee
and what it was in the composite of your personality at that time
that led you to make the misjudgments. And you answered. ;

But it seems to me there’s an important follow-on question.
People who aspire to lead constantly learn by their ex_penencel. -

Give us your thoughts of how you hlavcta ﬁtdfvagclclag in your lear
i since 1987, when vou were ast befor .
mz‘lg\/llfoéiérsl«:s. Senator, I thini that working with Director erbster
for 2 years, almost 2 years, was a very beneficial experience };Jrfus.
His expertise, both as Director t%f ;;}iehF(?I’ta}?ddas a judge before

ht experiences to me tha adn’t had.

th%tr,lé) rggl t%he thgngs that I always admired Director ‘\?Vebsto:-:ti1 for
was a management technique that I have tried to _learn _fror_ril; t}m,
and that is that when you want to make a change in an insti u'1gn
that you want to be lasting, you bring in the people, the cazeens se,
you tell them what your objective is, and then ask themh 0 comu
back to you with proposed solutions on how to get to where yod_
want to go; so that the bureauc;-acy feels like the change is a pro

uct of its own work, not something imposed from above. s .

I've seen too many senior people come into governmellmk, m;pgﬁ
change, and watch it all disappear the minute they wa l?ut i e
door. I think it's a technique that Director Webster has that has
the potential for truly making lasting change in a burﬁauclrzﬁcy. od

So that is a very important management lesson t ath ?arn 1
from him. And, frankly, locking at the list of initiatives that merilf
tioned in my opening statement yesterday, when the time cofnv;;is,se
we go forward with that, if I'm confiyrmed and a numb?r_ 0t doto
different projects get under way, that’s a technique that I inten

use.
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I clearly have learned a lot working for the President and with
General Scowcroft and Secretary Cheney and Secretary Baker over
the lqst 2% years, almost 3 years, both in terms of their needs for
mtelhgenpe, how they use intelligence, how they view intelligence
anéi hglw tlt could be made more useful to them. '

0 what experience, as well as really occupying a olicy positi
at a level that I had not occupied bgfore, Iijthi%mk, I;las )éil\jfe; :'?12
even better insight into how intelligence can be improved and how
1t can be used better by the policy community.

_Senator WARNER. I thank the witness and I thank my friend for
yielding.

Senator METZENBAUM. Mr. Chairman?

Chairman BorgN. Senator Metzenbaum?

Senator METZENBAUM. Mr. Chairman, I just want to say to my
colleague and friend, Senator Rudman, who I know is about to
commence his questioning, that he has been very patient and has
been present while I went through a line of Inquiry.

There_ s an amendment on the floor that I am handling and 1
am leav1_ng. But it not out of disrespect. I will follow the record and
I apologize for not being present, because I think there will be
some gems of wisdom that I will be interested in hearing.

Senator RupmaN. Mr. Chairman, I have no questions. [Genera]
laughter.]

Chairman Borgn. The Senator from New Hampshire, are you
ready to proceed?

Senator Rupman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, I was reminded by my friend from Maine, Sena-
tor Cohep, of a restatement of an oft-stated principle recently by
the President of Harvard University, who said that it was an im-
p%rfﬁict world and there were many imperfect people within that
world.

Chairman Borgn. The presidents of Harvard should be fully in-
formed about that, I would think. [General laughter.]

Senator Rupman. Most Yale graduates do feel that way. [General
laughter.]

I was struck by the fact, sitting here yesterday, last evening, and
again this morning, that this has certainly been true on both sides
of the table that the nominee sits at this morning.

By his own statement, there have been imperfections in his Jjudg-
ment. By the same token, I would say that there are a number of
Sel}ators, pgs&ubly all, who have failed to recognize the need to take
action at difficult times and who, in retrospect, would have acted
differently with the benefit of hindsight. And yet, we sit here,
under our system, in judgment of this man, trying to set a stand-
ard of competence and integrity that we're willing to accept.

I think it’s important for us to recognize that in making that

ognize, is that he is now chronologically 4 years older, emotionally
maybe 30 years older, since that time in 1986 when this first broke.
I just wanted to start off with those comments.
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I also want to thank Senator Cohen for his presence and for his
being one of the most incredible staffers I've ever had. [General
laughter.]

Senator CoHEN. I thought you were in need of that assistance,
Senator Rudman. [General laughter.]

Senator RUpMAN. Senator Cohen has a whole new vocation if he
chooses not to run over and over again. He would be hired by any
Member of this Committee on either side.

He gave me some wonderful quotations to use. He was referring
to Homer in particular. I said to him, “Bill, if you quote Homer,
people expect it. If I quote him, they’ll laugh.”” So I won't quote
Homer. [General laughter.]

Mr. Gates, I want to just take you over, unfortunately, some of
the ground that’s already been covered. I had hoped during this
first round to talk more along the lines that Senator Bradley has
spoken in terms of the whole thrust of what the Agency does and
where you want to take it. But I feel it is important—because of
the lack of institutional memory on what happened in 1986-1987—
at least to go over some of the ground that my friend from Ohio,
Senator Metzenbaum, covered earlier. So I'm going to do that and
ask for some of your comments on it. There are a few areas that [
think need some emphasis here to keep this record straight,

Senator Metzenbaum referred during a long series of questions
both last evening and this morning to a November-December—I
don’t know the exact date—appearance of yours before the Senate
Intelligence Committee in which you made known your strong feel-
ings about notification. Then, in the questions following that narra-
tive, there was the suggestion that somehow you were disingenuous
to the Committee, that you, in fact, misrepresented to the Congress
your point of view because, at the time that you were doing that,
you were aware of an unreported Finding.

You're familiar with that line of questioning?

Mr. Gates. Yes, sir.

Senator Rupman. I want, for the record, to refer to Iran-Contra
Exhibit JMP-28, which is on the White House stationery and dated
January 17, 1986. I might say, parenthetically, I hope that some
day I will never have to talk about this subject again. But I guess it
just keeps coming up. It's almost like a typhus epidemic in that
anybody within 5 miles of the germ either died, is infected, or is
barely able to survive. So I guess we're back in that mode again.

The January 17 White House exhibit I have in front of me was a
memorandum for the President of the United States, Ronald
Reagan, from his National Security Adviser, John Poindexter. It’s
very instructive to read the last paragraph. The rest of it is in the
record, but that paragraph is instructive as to the discussion you
had with the Senator from Ohio.

It said the following. I would point out that at this time you were
the Deputy Director for Intelligence.

Am I correct?

Mr. GaTes. Yes, sir.

Senator RUDMAN. That is a very esteemed position, but it is
hardly the final policy leadership of the CIA. Is that correct?

Mr. Gares, Yes, sir.
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Senator RupMaN. Here was Admiral Poindexter’s memoerandum
to the President which the President initialed: “You have discussed
the general outlines of the Israeli plan with Secretaries Shultz and
Weinberger, Attorney General Meese, and Director Casey. The Sec-
retaries do not recommend you proceed with this plan. Attorney
General Meese and Director Casey believe the short-term and long-
term objectives of the plan warrant the policy risks involved and
recommend you approve the attached Finding. Because of the ex-
treme sensitivity of this project, it is recommended that you exer-
cise your statutory prerogatives’—which you referred to in your
answer to the Senator from Ohio—“that you exercise your statuto-
ry prerogatives to withhold notification of the Finding to the Con-
gressional Oversight Committees until such time that you,” the
President, “deem it to be appropriate.”

Do you recall that?

Mr. GATEs. Yes, sir.

Senator RubMaN. In the Finding itself, in the operative clause, it
says the following: “I hereby find”—this is the President of the
United States speaking—*1 hereby find that the following oper-
ation in a foreign country, including all support necessary to such
operation, is important to the national security of the United
States and, due to its extreme sensitivity and security risks, I de-
termine it is essential to limit prior notice and direct the Director
of Central Intelligence to refrain from reporting this Finding to the
Congress, as provided in section 501 of the National Security Act of
1947, as amended, until I otherwise direct.”

Do you recall that?

Mr. Gates. Yes, sir.

Senator RubMAN. And you were familiar with that at the time of
the appearance discussed in your prior testimony?

Mr. GaTEs. Yes, sir. .

Senator RupMan. Do you feel that as the Deputy Director of In-
telligence you, at that point, were free to violate that restriction
laid on the Agency by the President of the United States?

Mr. GatEs, No, sir. :

Senator RupmaN. Now, to carry it a step further, what you have
said to us in testimony is that, “were you to find yourself in that
position, you would . . .”—and I'd like you to finish the sentence.

Mr. Gartes. I characterized that if I had found myself asked the
specific question in April, 1986, confronted with the directive from
the President, I would, in effect, seek time to go back and say that
I had been confronted with this situation, that I had to respond to
the Committee, and that the only possibilities were either to tell
them about the Finding or to go back and tell them that I had been
directed by the President not to answer the question. But I would
have sought guidance in that way and I would have come back to
the Committee immediately. I'm assuming it would have been the
very next day.

Senator RupMan. I think that it is stretching reality to accuse
you of misrepresentation of your views about notification when, in
fact, you were operating under that directive from the President
himself.

As a matter of fact, Mr. Gates—and you correct me if I'm
wrong—but there is still a dispute between this Committee and
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this President, who was not involved in that Finding, as to the con-
stitutional question of notification and the 48 hour rule. Am I cor-
rect?

Mr. GaTEs. Yes, sir.

Senator RUDMAN. And that it is still unresolved?

Mr. Gates. Yes, sir. o

Senator Rupman. But it is your position and you are giving us
your pledge as the nominee that if, in fact, you are confirmed, you
will follow the procedure you have outlined in answers to Senator
Boren, Senator Metzenbaum, and to me just now?

Mr. Gates. Yes, sir.

Senator Rupman. All right. Thank you.

Let me move to another point.

There was some innuendo that because Colonel North had made
certain references to you in his diary, T believe, that somehow that
charged you with some knowledge or responsibility for what was
written there. Your answer to the Senator from Ohio in response
to that question was that you had no idea what that reference was.

Am I correct?

Mr. GATES. Yes, sir.

Senator RupmaN. For the record, Mr. Chairman, I want to refer
to page 76 of the final report of the Congressional Cornm_itte(_as on
Iran-Contra. I want to read an excerpt of that report which is in-
structive as to why I think that your answer is an accurate answer,
and any inference that somehow, because vou are in that dlary, it
casts aspersions on your integrity is incorrect. Let me read it. '

“In his report to Poindexter, North exaggerated his own role in
the crisis. In a PROF note, North told Poindexter he had personal-
ly forestalled a crisis by calling the President of Costa Rica and
threatening to cut off aid. North conceded to Poindexter that he
may have overstepped the bounds of his authority: ‘I recognize that
I was well beyond my charter in dealing with a head of state this
way and in making threats, offers that may be impossible to deliv-
er.

Poindexter responded, ‘Thanks, Ollie. You did the right thing,
But let’s try to keep it quiet.” " ]

So the PROF note was that Colonel North had a rather direct
discussion with President Arias of Costa Rica. )

“North admitted in his testimony that he had not called Presi-
dent Arias. He claimed instead that the PROF message was spemfi,;
cally cast the way it was to protect the other two parties engaged.

So I repeat what I said yesterday, that any reliance by anyone on
PROF notes without some sort of corroboration is unfair to the wit-
ness and, frankly, unfair to the Committee.

I want to talk about the famous Allen meeting of October 1,
1986, and the memo that was executed pursuant to that. )

I'm not very anxious to air soiled laundry of the CIA at this
hearing, but there is something that really ought to be said here. 1
am aware of it, I have been made aware of it, and I want to discuss
it with you in as diplomatic terms as I can.

You, Mr. Gates, are a product of the Intelligence Directorate. Am
I correct?

Mr. GATes. Yes, sir.
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Senator RupMan. At the time, Clair George was the Director of
Operations. Am I correct?

Mr. GATES. Yes, sir.

Senator RUDMAN. Am I correct that there was, you've character-
ized it as “mistrust,” but would I be accurate in saying that the
relationship between you and Mr, George was somewhat strained
at times?

Mr. GaTEes. We cooperated in some areas and we had some strong
disagreements in others. Yes, sir. _

Senator RupMAN. Would it also be fair to say that, although nei-
ther of you knew what the outcome would be, that you were both
looked at as people who were upward bound in the Agency and
there might have been some thought on someone’s part that you
were competitors for advancement within the Agency. Is that a fair
statement?

Mr. Gartes. I suppose some may have thought that. Yes.

Senator Rupman. Well, many people thought that, Mr. Gates.

Now, when Mr. Allen came to you with this complaint, he was,
essentially, talking about something that was within the realm of
the Operations Directorate. Am I correct?

Mr. GATES. Yes, sir.

Senator RUpMAN. And you were in the Intelligence Directorate.

Mr. Gartes. By that time, sir, I was the Deputy Director of Cen-
tral Intelligence.

Senator Rupman. But your background, I should have said, was
in the Intelligence Directorate.

Mr. Gartes. Yes, sir. '

Senator RUDMAN. Let me ask you this flat-out question, Mr.
Gates. I've never asked it of you in our private meetings. I saved it
for today.

During that time when you were dealing with Mr. Casey, who
you knew had a rather direct pipeline down to the DO and, in fact,
would even bypass the DO and go to some of his subordinates—Mr.
George's subordinates, such as Mr. Fiers—was it not a fact that one
of the reasons you proceeded with extreme caution was that you
did not want to get yourself into a situation of antagonizing the
Operations Directorate without adequate and substantial cause to
go forward?

Mr. Gares. I certainly was concerned that they not view me as
having some sort of inherent suspicion of them or mistrust of them
in terms of their activities and their integrity. I did worry about
that. Yes.

Senator RupMman. In fact, that was a very sensitive thing be-
cause, essentially, you were a relatively new Deputy Director of
Central Intelligence. You had been on a level, the same level, with
the DO, Mr. George, and you were about to move into an area with
the Director and with the General Counsel that very well could
give them a lot of grief.

Am T correct?

Mr. Gares. I didn’t know, but I clearly had a concern that they
not look upon me as some sort of, as a person who just basically
mistrusted them.

Senator Rubman. Because, of course, you were coming from the

Directorate of Intelligence and now you had oversight over both,
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and you wanted to be sure that you weren’t perceived as someone
whoastﬂl had a bias toward your former directorate. Is that accu-
rate?

Mr. GaTEs. Yes, sir, and I think also it was part of the reason
why I moved slowly in involving myself in the activities of the
clandestine service, as I indicated yesterday, only moving to get
these briefings on a couple of these operations at the end of July,
several months after I became Deputy.

Senator RubMan. I thank you for that answer. It confirms what
I have been told by others and what I have thought.

One of the problems of these hearings it that they take place in a
rather sterile atmosphere. To try to get the reallife feelings of
people who are on-line, facing the crisis, is a very difficult thing to
convey at a hearing like this. But I think my own judgment, look-
ing at that whole record, is that one of the mMajor reasons you pro-
ceeded cautiously is that you wanted to make sure that you had
good evidence. You had some question about Mr. Allen’s judgment
on some of these issues, as you've testified—although he had pro-
duced some good work—and you wanted to be sure that you'd got it
right before you went forward. -

Is that a good characterization?

Mr. Gates. That'’s fair.

Senator RubMAN. All right.

Now, I do want to turn to the other item that was the subject of
a long series of questions, and that was on the Hasenfus shoot-
down and what you said and when you said it. It's kind of interest-
ing because we now have some very current evidence to look at
and that is the unfortunate—and I say that sincerely—indictment
of Mr. Fiers, who I got to know very well over the years and had
enormous respect for. I think he found himself in a terrible posi-
tion. But he has been indicted and he will be dealt with by the jus-
tice system, fairly I'm sure.

I want to read to you from that indictment.

“On or about October 9, 1986, the defendant, Alan Fiers, met
with the CIA Deputy Director for Operations, Clair George, to dis-
cuss what information would be provided to Congressional Commit-
tees investigating the circumstances surrounding the downed air-
craft and the resupply operation of which it was a part. During the
course of the meeting, Mr. George informed the defendant, Alan D.
Fiers, Jr., that certain facts would not be conveyed to the Congres-
sional Committees because they would lead to further Congression-
al inquiry that would ‘turn the spotlight’ on the Administration
and thus reveal the role of Lieutenant Colonel North in the resup-
ply effort.”

It is obvious that it was not revealed to the Congress.

Was it revealed to you?

Mr. Gates. No, sir.

Senator RubpMaAN. In fact, Mr. Gates, as sad as it is to state here
this morning, you were lied to—if the possession of those facts is
accura‘e. I will give you that caveat. You were lied to by your own
people.

Mr. Gartes. If that statement is correct, that is true.

Senator Runman, I think that is a very important point to make
at this hearing: that to charge this witness with knowledge when
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he was lied to—and, in my opinion, he was lied to—is the height of
unfairness. :

Finally, Mr. Gates, again we're talking about this period of time
almost in a sterile way, as if that’s all everybody was doing. I want
to read to you—and ask you to comment on it-—some of your testi-
mony before this Committee on the 17th and 18th of February,
1987, during your previous hearing. .

You said, “Second, while I certainly do not wish to trivialize
these activities, it is important, I think, to place them in perspec-
tive. Lest it appear that the Iranian affair was the preoccupying
issue on our minds during this period, let me point out that during
the first two weeks in October, both we and you were preoccupied
with the downing of the private benefactor airplane in Nicaragua
and the capture of Eugene Hasenfus. The Daniloff affair and asso-
ciated expulsions culminated during this period. We were deeply
engaged in preparations for the President’s meeting in Reykjavik,
Nearly simultaneously, we had a political crisis in the Philippines,
a phony Soviet withdrawal from Afghanistan, a major commitment
of time and energy related to the British expulsion of the Syrian
Ambassador, and Syria’s involvement in terrorism, a flap over false
reports of Korea’s Kim I1-Sung’s death, and a major precccupation
with the renewal of authorized support for the Contra program on
October 1, and the associated conflict along the Nicaraguan-Hondu-
ran border.” :

Ygu were involved in all of those things at that time. Am I cor-
rect?

Mr. Gates. Yes, sir

Senator RUDMAN. And you were groping, as best you could, to
find out information about what was going on and in some cases
you were not leveled with by your own people. Am I correct?

Mr. Gares. I think that is correct, sir.

Senator RUDMAN. Mr. Gates, [ think you've been forthcoming
and forthright. As anyone who followed Iran-Contra would know, I
was hever an apologist for the Administration or its participants. I
think many things were done wrong and I will think to my dying
day that it was a serious breach of our Constitution. But I do not
think that you ought to be held accountable for anything in that,
except an occasional judgment which I think could have been
better. But I don’t think we can judge you on that. I think we have
to judge you on your entire record, on your competency, on your
integrity, on your qualifications, and I hope that’s the way each
Member of this Committee and, indeed, the Senate will vote when

this Committee reports out your nomination.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman BoreN. Thank you very much, Senator Rudman.

As I've indicated, we will take a recess until 1:40, since we have
run over a little bit, when we will begin the round of questions this
afternoon. This wil]l enable every Member of the Committee to at
least have had an initial round of questions with the nominee. As
I've indicated previously, we will not cut off the questioning of the
nominee even though we will go to other witnesses on Thursday.

We are going to be very thorough in this process. I know the
nominee understands our responsibilities. And as long as there are
any Members of the Committee that have questions that they
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think really seriously need to be addressed, those M ;
have an opportunity to ask those questions . ose Members will
and th
have an opportunity to respond, q nd the nominee will
V&;ehwﬂl stand inlxéecess until 1:40 this afternoon,
ereupon, at 12:45 p.m., the C i
at 1:40 the same day.| P € Lommittee recessed, to reconvene

AFTERNOON SESSION

Chairman Boren. I might just indicate i
] EN. again for the pu f
scheduling, we will attempt to complete about 5:00 o’clotﬂ: I(;I:'Ofi?:ti)e
:ﬁfﬁ;‘e&(_)ﬂ 0 clogk toctlagz, We vgill follow the order that I outlined
£ In rounds not to exceed thirty minutes, P -
tors will not take quite 80 minutes. Y fnutes. Ferhaps all Sena
We will not, of course, be in session on Wednesday. On Thursday

rnorni_ng at 7{0{) o’clock, as was our practice this time, we will be

on Thursday morning.

haz‘}ang‘esgsy, we wi%l have a W(Iimle series of open witnesses that
: previously announced to you.

il over bore Friday. you. Some of them could even
Friday, we will have a closed session on least part of the day on

After that time it would be our intention then to com
questlonzng of the nominee., Members have indicated theypfi?)teh;}\)fg
some additional questions they would like to ask. So Mr. Gates
would be prepared to come back, I might say to the nominee, po-
tentially as early as Tuesday afternoon, it might be Wednesda}; we
haIve to i](]iISt \;fa;t and 1iee how this works out. ’

would anticipate that most of that final questioning would be i
open session. There ‘might be a few mattersqthat we ‘Eould retll)ui:g
the nomunee to testify to in closed session if they related to ques-

Memb i i
sho?lllde;zk{m opportunity to ask any questions that they feel they
I think Members have been o ing i ith i
_ perating in good faith in terms of
the questions they havg been asking. They felt a responsibility to
ask those questions. We'll seek any documents that they might feel
It)lllggg ghould have a chance to review before the hearings are com-
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So again in keeping with those two words that I said I hope
would describe our hearings throughout, fair and thorough, this is
the process we intend to follow.

Our next round of questions will come from my colleague from
the state of California, Senator Cranston. Senator Cranston?

Senator RubMAN. Senator Cranston would you yield to me for
thirty seconds?

Senator CRansTON. Of course.

Senator RubMaN. I just want to make sure, Mr. Chairman, that
the written record is correct. At the close of this morning I read
some documents relating to Mr. Fiers. Of course those were from
his plea bargain. He pleaded guilty to two misdemeanors. There is
a separate indictment with similar language involving Mr. George.
I did not read that but there is great similarity and I want to make
sure that people knew what I was reading from and it was clearly
identified.

Chairman Borgn. The document—just to be clear—the document
from which you were reading was the document relating to the
Fiers plea bargain.

Senator RUDMAN. That is correct. And I thank my friend from
California. :

Chairman Boren. The Senator from California is recognized.

Senator CransTON. Thank you Mr. Chairman. I am delighted to
finally have my turn.

I welcomed one remark in your opening statement where you
said one of your objectives as DCI would be to reduce the amount
of secrecy within and around the CIA.

As we all know there are many, many papers that get stamped
gecret that shouldn’t be. Don’t you really think we should reduce
the amount of secrecy government wide and review the whole clas-
sification system? ]

_ Mr. Gates. I agree with that, Senator Cranston, and I think
there has been considerable progress in this arena in the last sever-
al years. I recall reading the—I realize it's not on everybody’s read-
ing list—but I did read the annual report of the Informatlo_n'Secu-
rity Oversight Office. And they noted that the number of original—
of people with original classification authority—has dropped from
something like 60,000 people in 1971 to about 6,500 people in 1990,

Similarly, the number of original classifications has dropped by
about eighty percent over the last several years. Where the prob-
lem is, is in the review of documents for declassification that are
sitting in the government warehouses and safes. There are, you
know, untold number of pages of these.

Part of the problem is one of resources in the review of these
documents. One of the areas that I've thought about in terms of
greater Agency openness, where a DCI might be able to do some-
thing, would be perhaps in somewhat greater openness with re-
spect to historians. And being able to give greater access, particu-
larly to older documents in the Agency files. This is one area that I
think warrants looking into. .

But overall, I think we have made some progress, I hope, since
those days when people would put together a compilation of clip-
pings and then stamp it secret.
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Senator CransroN. Without going into the warehouses and the
safes and files and so forth, might it be worth your initiating dis-
cussions with the Secretaries of Defense and State and perhaps
Justice and other appropriate places to review what might be done
with ongoing operations to reduce the secrecy factor?

Mr. GATES. Yes sir.

Senator CranstoN. The Intelligence Community presumably
facts shrinking budgets while at the same time it faces new de-
mands in areas like arms control verification, counternarcotics, ter-
rorism and so forth. In regard to economic intelligence that you
discussed with Senator Bradley this morning, you mentioned that
two countries seem to be engaging in_economic espionage of one
sort or another. Without asking you what countries, I did want to
aS}i«:, i?s that done by the governments or is it a private operation or
what?

Mr. GaTes. I'm confident in one case it’s the government, Sena-
tor. I think it’s the government in the second but I'd have to check.

Senator CransToN. Do you know how they go about sharing that
with business concerns fo avoid the concern that Senator Metz-
enbaum has of favoritism to one business or another?

Mr. Gates. No sir, I don't.

Senator CRANSTON. Some people suggested that intelligence al-
ready collected from national systems could be of tremendous use
to environmental scientists in dealing with the environment gener-
ally. Do you see any role for the Intelligence Community and the
CIA specifically in acquiring information that can be helpful in
df??‘lfin‘?g with environmental threats to our security and our quality
of life?

Mr. Gates. We certainly have assets that can be brought to bear
against this problem. One area, for example, not in an environmen-
tal area, but an area outside of normal or what one would think
would be usual intelligence interests, are the statistics that the
Agency has pulled together on the number of AIDS cases world-
wide, for example, because of a skepticism that the figures provid-
ed by those countries to the World Health Organization, they shade
for political reasons.

It may be that the data gathering capabilities of the Intelligence
Community and perhaps some of itg space assets might be used in
connection with environmental issues. The only concern that I
have in that regard is as the resources available to the community
decline and there are a shrinking number of people to do a larger
number of tasks, I think we need to look carefully at those things
which are in the traditional national security arena as we look at
some of these new challenges before us.

A new area, for example, in the last ten to fifteen vears is the
whole realm of narcotics, where the Intelligence Community has
gotten fairly involved and now spends a fair amount of money.
That was an area that was not a traditional intelligence concern.

It may be that the environment will fall into that category as
well, but I think that that’s one of those areas in this broad look at
intelligence missions and priorities that I think we ought to ad-
dress and it ought to be a matter of agreement among the people
m the Executive branch and also in the Congress if they deem that
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sufficiently important to begin using some intelligence resources
for that purpose.

Senator CRANSTON. It seems to me that if you could it would be
very constructive. You could help on the AIDS front. That would
certainly be a real contribution.

Are there any other non-traditional areas where you think CIA
might be constructively helpful?

Mr. Gates. Well, two areas where the Agency has done some
work in the past that I thought was of particular interest included,
first of all, some work on climate change which was done a number
of years ago. I guess that involved environmental matters. Another
is on international resources, particularly water resources. The
Agency did a paper a number of years ago indentifying various
places around the world where it could forecast that within the
~ next ten or twenty years there was a real likelihood of war because

of conflict over available water resources. I think there are some
areas such as that where intelligence can make a unique contribu-
tion.

I think that there are a number of different areas that are of in-
terest to people in the Executive branch and also in the Congress.
Your comment about environmental studies is one thing, The
Agency has done some work on civil technology development over-
seas in terms of being able to identify leading areas where other
countries are leading us in technological development and why.
Sometimes it’s a technology transfer problem and so on. The basic
work done on that has been important to the broader work we've
done on technology transfer. So this question of foreign technology
development is another area where I think there is some opportu-
nity. So there are a variety of these areas that are non-traditional
in the national security arena where we've done some interesting
work. ‘Again, I come back to my only concern being that at some
pﬂinfi we have to draw the line In terms of how much we can actu-
a 0.

enator CRANSTON. Putting on your hat as a Soviet expert, do
you believe what has happened in the Soviet Union is irreversible?
Or do you think it’s possible that a new Stalin or Brezhnev-type
dictatorship could be re-imposed on the people there?

Mr. Gares. I think communism, Marxism, Leninism is dead in
the Soviet Union. There may be some practitioners of it who
haven’t twisted their heads yet to find out——

Senator CRANSTON. What about some other form of dictatorship?

Mr. Gates. But I do think there is a potential concern about a
return to authoritarianism in some parts of the former Soviet
Union. I think that the revolution that has taken place in the
wake of the coup now opens the prospect for a genuine democrati-
zation of the republics of the former Soviet Union. And also for
economic transformation. But that’s in the long term.

I think that the near term is going to be extremely difficult in
the republics and in the'former goviet Union. The old system has
been destroyed. A new system has not yet been created to take its
place. And as a result I think it’s going to be a very difficult
winter. I think that we have to look at the republics. Some of the
republics are further along in the process of democratization than

- others. Some are still fairly authoritarian. And I think if events, if
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Circumstances worsen over the winter, there will be a temptation
to return to the command type economy, and command type politi-
cal authority that we saw under communism.

So I think it’s something that is a possibility given the very seri-

on, so there won’t be the temptation to return to authoritariani
t anism.
Senator CRA'NSTOI\{. Do you believe there is a real threat of wide-
spread starvation this year? This winter? '
Mr. Gartes. I think that in some areas of some republics there
could be some severe short_ages of food. Part of the problem is that

ance of the central government.

However ﬂaWed' the system was before the coup, it's become
worse now. So I think that in some specific parts of the country, it
could be a problem, yes. ’

Senai_:or CranstoN. How well equipped is the CIA to follow
events in the new emerging republics there and the many semi-au-
tonomous republics within the republics and in all the various
ethnic groups?

Mr. GATES. Senator, I'm not totally familiar with the current sit-

ation for the Agency, but I would say speaking for the govern-
ment as a whole, that our capabilities are very limited.

Right now we have a consulate in Kiev and one in Leningrad,
and other than tha_lt we are dependent on travelers and what we
hear out of the S_ov1et Union and so on. I would hope that we could
Inove at some point fairly quickly to establish consulates in each of
the repubhc_ capitals that would become embassies if those repub-
lics became independent.

But I think we need to establish an official presence throughout
these republics Just as quickly as we can, not only so we can know
betffer what is going on, but so that people can give local advice to
{Jlgifsll)nessmen and others wanting to invest and people wanting to

Senaf:or Cranston. How confident are you that we know what's
happening over there in regard to the command, custody and con-
trol of nuclear weapons?

Mr. GartEs. I am more confident certainly now than I wag during
the period of the coup itseif. We have, I think, satisfactory assur-
ances in terms of the command and control system now, and they
clealjly are considering ways of involving some of the republic
presidents and others in their command and control system in a

Senator' CraNSTON. President Bush said yesterday that we would
be more likely to favor economic aid to the people over there if the
Soviet Union stopped aiming its 30,000 nuclear missiles at us, A
few days before that he said, quote, “I hope we'll see some recogni-
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tion that we're not their enemy and they’ll stop aiming missiles at
the United States of America,” unquote.

Some questions about that. First, could we verify that they had
stopped aiming at us if indeed they did stop? :

Mr. GATEs. I think we have some independent intelligence means
of being able to give us some indication of that. I would not pretend
that it would be complete information.

Senator CRANSTON. It seems to me they might well suggest a re-
ciprocal move on our part—that we stop aiming our thousands,
tens of thousands of deadly missiles at them. Would they be able to
verify our compliance?

Mr. GaTes. I guess I would have to reply I hope not. I don’t know
the answer to that. There presumably could be some kind of
mutual verification means, but it's hard for me, off the top of my
head, to figure out what they would be. .

Senator CransToN. Do you think it's conceivable that we could
work out such a mutual agreement with them? And would it be ad-
visable to undertake to do so?

Mr. Gares. I think that the most reliable first step would be to
proceed with the implementation of the START agreement and the
dismantling of a lot of these systems. As long as they sit in the
silos or on those road-mobile launchers and so on, nobody can know
from one day to the next, reliably, where they are aimed.

I think that significant reductions in the numbers of those weap-
on}.!: is probably the greatest assurance that we stop aiming at each
other.

Senator CRANSTON. If they are responsive to President Bush’s re-
quest, is there any real need, given the new circumstances, for us
to have as many as we now aim at them?

Mr. GarEs. I would think that if there are significant reductions
on the Soviet side, Senator, it would be my opinion that there could
be significant reductions on our side as well.

Senator CransToN. What have you learned about our capacity
and the world’s capacity to monitor nuclear proliferation in the
light of what we have learned in Iraq?

Mr. GatEs. Before we had the war with Iraq and the subsequent
ingpection regime that has given us the insight we have had, I
would have been more confident in telling you that we had a
pretty good handle on proliferation efforts around the world. We
know the companies that are engaged in this activity and have in
the past. We know the governments that are trying to develop a
nuclear capability. We have a pretty good sense of the kinds of
technologies and the kinds of things people are looking for in this
connection.

I think that one of the things that happened to us with respect to
Iraq was what I would call a certain technological arrogance. I
think people did not anticipate that the Iraqi’s would reach so far
back for what I understand to be a very outdated and old technolo-
gy for assembling—for a nuclear weapons program.

And so I think that—one of the things that I've discovered about
analysts, not being a technical expert myself, is that there is, par-
ticularly in this country, a certain technical arrogance and if
people—if they don’t have evidence that people are doing a particu-
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lar kind of program the way we did it, then there is a tendency to
say they're not doing it. -

And we've seen too many examples in the Soviet arena where in
fact they took a different path that seemed-—that it was either re-
jected by our military or by someone else and made it work. So I
think the greatest lesson that we’ve learned out of the Iraqi experi-
ence is perhaps a little greater humility and a greater willingness
to look at a wider array of possibilities in some of these countries.

We knew that the Iraqis were trying to build a weapon; what we
underestimated was just how far they had gone.

Senator CRaNsSTON. You spoke yesterday of the difficulty of moni-
toring chemical and biclogical proliferation. What do we need to do
there to beef up our capacity?

Mr. Gates. [ think that one of the things that—there are cer-
tain-—again, this is an area where I'm certainly no expert, but I
think in the chemical arena there are certainly some kinds of pre-
cursors that can be monitored. Part of the new proliferation pro-
gram that the President put forth last November is limitations on
some fifty precursor chemicals that would be associated with chem-
ical weapons and we're getting a number of other countries to
work with us in monitoring the supply and sale of those weapons.

I think the biological problem is the most difficult of all. I can’t
help but believe that there are some technological answers in
terms of being able to detect certain kinds of chemicals that are
the most common in chemical weapons that would help in monitor-
ing such things in various countries. We’ve had pretty good luck in
places like Rabta in Libya and elsewhere in identifying where
chemical weapons are being produced.

So I guess that what I would see as the strategy for dealing with
it would be a combination of policy measures, perhaps some invest-
ment in technological research for monitoring devices, and I think
it also gets back to the enhanced human intelligence collection,
which is usually how we first get some indication that these pro-
grams are underway.

Senator CransToN. We've heard a lot about compartmentaliza-
tion within the CIA, limited loops, people excluded from informa-
tion within the Agency. Some of the people in the CIA are obvious-
ly trained in secrecy and deception and in dissembling. Senator
Rudman established this morning that you may well have been
lied to by one of your subordinates. How would you as CIA Director
guard against not being informed of actions undertaken by CIA
fzmp}loyees that might be improper and might be in violation of the
aw?

Mr. Gartes. I think there are two ways to deal with that, Senator
Cranston. One is I think that the procedures that Director Webster
has put in place that ensure the review of covert actions and that
people who, throughout the Agency from the analytical directorate,
the General Counsel’s office, the Comptroller, a variety of people
are looking at these programs, is an important way to assure com-
pliance. I think that the statutory Inspector General offers an
added safeguard in terms of being able to investigate rumors and
investigate information that might indicate there is some difficulty,
or some non-compliance. That is one of the reasons why I suppose
it is a little violation of privilege, but I was a strong supporter in



the Executive branch of signing the authorization bill with the
statutory Inspector General in it. ) )

And frankly, I think that a third safeguard is the opportunity to
come up here and brief the Congress on these covert actions and
have the opportunity for the kind of by-play and intensive ques-
tioning that goes on. And I think that all of those things acting to-
gether, as well as a clear understanding on the part of those who
work in CIA that there is no tolerance for non-compliance with the
law at the top, is an important element of making sure that people
follow the rules. .

I think that—I hesitate to read into people’s motives, but my
sense is that those who have acknowledged wrongdoing in the
Agency in connection with Iran-Contra believed that they were
doing the right thing. That they believed that this was either en-
couraged, or tolerated, at the top or that in some broader sense
that it was the right thing to do. And I think that the kind of
standard that Director Webster set, and I will say the kind of dquc—
tions that I gave as Acting Director, are an important element in
people understanding that that kind of thing will not be tolerated
in the Agency. )

Senator CranstoN, How confident would you be as Director that
you knew all you wanted to know and needed to know about what
people working under you were doing? .

Mr. Gares. Again, I think you have to depend on the reliability
of the people that are selected to senior positions working for you.
There are internal safeguards and means for investigating and
looking into problems. You know, no organization can ever be
100% confident that all the people working for it are going to obey
all the rules all the time. And it seems to me that you do every-
thing you can to ensure compliance with the rules, but you also try
to build a system whereby if there is one mdlv_ldual who goes
astray, you can identify it and deal with it very quickly, very early
on before it becomes a serious problem. I think that this is charac-
teristic of virtually any big institution. ) )

Senator CRANSTON. You spoke yesterday, perhaps a little plain-
tively, of how people sometimes look askance at you or other
people who work for the CIA, despite the belief of you and others
there that you are doing patriotic work. What are your feelings
about the role of CIA with its secrecy, its clandestine and covert
actions and so forth, in a democracy? Have we taken all of the pre-
cautions that we need to take to protect our democracy against any
adverse consequences of the actions of this agency? Have we taken
all the precautions we should take overseas to keep our clandestine
and covert actions and so forth from tarnishing our image abroad,
and making sure that they will not set back our desires to promote
democracy and freedom overseas? )

Mr. Gates. Senator, one of the interesting aspects of the dialogue
that CIA has with—and officers of the CIA have with—other intel-
ligence services is in describing how our oversight process works,
and how we see it working to our advantage. Why it is important
in a democracy to have an oversight process. .

With some of our colleagues from democratic countries, tl}ey
wince at the notion, but acknowledge that it is probably coming
their way.

599

I think one of the most interesting conversations that I had
along these lines was in a series of three private meetings with
Vladimir Kyruchkov, who became the director or the Chairman of
the KGB. First meeting was here in Washington in December of
1987, and then there were two meetings in Moscow. And part of
the discussion in each of those meetings was about the importance
of legislative oversight.

In the first meeting or two, I thought that he evinced some inter-
est in how you make an intelligence service more accepted and
more respected in its homeland. By the time of the third meeting it
was clear that he had reversed course in terms of his support for—
it was clear to me that he had reversed course in terms of his sup-
port for the reform process and was clearly headed in a different
direction. And that was the last meeting we ever had.

But in all of these dialogues, it is, I would say, just as American
democracy is held up as a model for other countries, despite its im-
perfections. I think that the oversight process and the role of CIA
in American democracy with the unprecedented amount of —or the
unequaled amount of —publicity about its activities is a model for
the rest of the world, again, however imperfect the process may be.
I think that the last 15 years have been a long Pilgrims Progress in
this evolution of oversight and a sense that CIA is both accountable
an;lk adheres to the law. We probably still have further progress to
mzke,

But I think that in the eyes of many foreign governments, the
view is that the way that CIA reiates to the Congress and relates to
the American people is something to be admired if not emulated.

Senator CRANSTON. What was your position in the CIA in Sep-
tember and October of 19807

Mr. GaTes. 1 was—through the early part of October 1980, I was
Executive Assistant to Admiral Stansfield Turner, the Director.
{\Jn(_i then I became the National Intelligence Officer for the Soviet

nion.

Senator CRANSTON. As you, know there have been allegations
that a secret meeting with Iranians to discuss hostages, when they
should be released or not be released, occurred shortly before the
1980 Presidential election. These allegations charged that George
Bush, Casey, and Donald Gregg, then a CIA employee, attended
that meeting. Would you have known if Gregg attended any such
meeting?

Mr. GATes No, sir.

Senator CraNsTON. So you have no knowledge about that?

Mr. GATEs. No sir.

Senator CransToN. Did you have any contact directly or indirect-
ly with anyone connected in any fashion with the Reagan or Bush
campaigns in 1979 and 19807

r. Gates. Not before the election, no sir.

Senator Cranston. Did they make any efforts to get in touch
with you?

Mr. GaTrs. No, sir.

Senator Cranston. I would like to ask sort of a broad general
question. What have you learned from this experience, the confir-
mation hearing, and the questions that come up about the Agency
and your actions in the Agency in the past, and questions like



those asked by Senator Metzenbaum, and Senator Bradley, in par-
ticular, the exhaustive scrutiny of your past actions that will
strengthen you as Director if confirmed?

Mr. GaTEs. Senator, I believe that it has certainly brought home
to me the importance of the lessons that I described that I had
learned. And also the fragility of this relationship of trust and con-
fidence that I talked about in my opening statement.

I believe—there was a considerable—I must say, I have received
very differing points of view among people in the Executive branch
that I consulted on my pledge at the end of my formal statement to
resign if I felt that a relationship of trust and confidence were jeop-
ardized. And I decided to go ahead with it because I am convinced,
and I think this hearing has reaffirmed to me, that there can be
differences in policy and differences in approach between the Exec-
utive branch and the Congress, and between CIA and the Oversight
Committees, but that those differences can be accommodated
within a relationship of trust and confidence. And I believe that
the kind of questioning that Senator Metzenbaum, Senator Bradley
and really all of the Members of the Committee up to now have
addressed to me emphasize that point to me all the more.

Senator CransroN. You have made plain that you believe in
giving candid and truthful answers to Congressional questioners at
hearings. Does that include, when it is obvious that the Members
or a Member is seeking certain information, if they don’t ask the
right question, do you remain silent appropriately, or do you volun-
teer information that meets the legitimate obvious needs of the
questioners?

Mr. Gares. No sir, I think that as I indicated in my opening
statement, I think it is important for the intelligence representa-
tives to be forthcoming as well as truthful.

In some respects, sometimes I have shared the experience of
these Committees in feeling like I had to ask the right questions
when I was at the Agency or I wouldn’t get the right answer. So I
have a certain amount of sympathy with that.

But I think that it’s clear that people have to be completely
forthcoming with the Committees because if you are not willing to
go beyond just the question that is asked, then you are going to get
the kind of crises that took place I think back in the first half of
the 1980’s where tremendous misunderstandings occur and there
really is no confidence.

Senator CranstoN. If you were sitting up here and not down
there, are there any questions that you would ask that we have not
asked? [General laughter.]

Mr. Gates. I would have to give that a fair amount of thought.
I've been asked a lot. _

Senator CRANSTON. Thank you very much.

Mr. Chairman, [ still have some more questions but I know my
time is up.

Chairman BoreN. Thank you very much, Senator Cranston.

We will begin a series of three votes on the Floor at approxi-
mately 2:35, unfortunately. The Chair is going to try to press
ahead. It may be that we will have to go as late as a’little past
5:00. I certainly want to make it possible for people who need to
leave to do so. We certainly won’t go past 5:30, in any event.
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Senator Gorton, would it be i
r . possible for you to at least mavh
ﬁfgeen gmn(l}ltes of y(Imr questioning if we can get a little— ybe do
enator ORTON. I will certainly go alo ith !
gom f_'ar | FORTO: yg ng with that. I'!] start and
Chairman Borgn. Why don’t we and then we will come back we
will have to have about a twenty minute recess while all of us go to
thg Flot?r tl(‘)d vote on these three back to back votes.
enator MURKOWSKI. Mr. Chairman, I would ask unanimou -
Sﬁptkt}lllat Exhlbgs JMEng be placed in the record which I dso Cgcr:t
1nk has been done. And the memorandu i
the subject of a question— neum covering that. Tt was
(SZhalrman BoreN. A question by Senator Rudman?
o tiréé::gollffﬂxowsm. Yes, and I believe it is his intention to have
reg}l;?rman BoreN, Without objection it will be placed in the
[The document referred to follows:]
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ACTION

MEMORANDUM FCR THE PRESIDENT

FROM: JCOHN M, POINDEXTERV
SUBJECT: Covert Action Pinding Regarding Iran

Prime Minister Peress of Israel secrecly dispatched his special
advisor on terrorism with instructions to propouse 4 plan by which
Iscael, with limited assistance from the U.5., cin cCreats
conditions to help bring about & more moderate government in
Iran. The Israelis are very concernsd that Iran's deteriorating
position in the war with Iraq, the potential for further
radicalization in Iran, and the possibility of snhanced Soviet
influsnce in the Gulf all pose significant thrests to the

gecurity of Israsl. They beliave it is essential that they act
to at least preserve a balance of power in the reqion,

The Israeli plan is premised on the assumption that moderate
elements in Iran can come to pover if these factions demonstratse”

cheir credibility in defending Iran against Iraq and in deterring

Soviet intervention. To achiave the strategic goal of a more
moderata Iranian government, the Israelis are prepared to
unilatsrally commence selling military matariel to
Western-orientad Iranian factions.
doing they can achieve a heretofore unchbtainable penstration of
the Iranian governing hierarchy,
the Iranians are 0 desperate for military materiel, expertise
and intelligence that the preovision of these rescurces will
result in favorable long-term changes in personnel and attitudes
within the Iranian government. TFurther, once the sxchange
relactionship has commanced, s dependancy would be established cn
those wvho are providing the requisite rescurces, thus allowing
the provider{s) to coercively influence near-term svents. Such
an outcome is consistent with our policy objectives and would
present significant advantages for U.8. national interssts. As
described by the Prime Minister's smissary, the only requirement
the Israelis have is an assurance that they will be allowed to
purchase 0.8, replenishments for the stocks that thay ssll to
Iran. We have researched the legal problems of Israel's sellirg
U.S. manufactursd arms to Iran. Because of the requirement in
U.S. law for recipients of U.8, arms to notify the U.5.
government of transfers toc third countries, I do not recommend
that you agrae with the specific details of the lsraeli plan.
However, there is another possibility. 3Some tims ago Attorney
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Chairman BoreN. Senator Gorton?

Senator GorroN. Mr. Chairman, one of the reasons that I am
happy to start now is that I want to say that in this relatively
lengthy hearing so far, I'’ve been most fascinated and most enlight-
ened by the really fine questions which Senator Cranston has just
asked. It seems to me that so many of them have gone to lessons—
have gone to where we stand now in this country with the CIA and
to the future, that I can do no better than express the frustration
that I've wanted to ask many of those questions myself and will
follow up on some of them. But I think the Senator from California
has really helped enlighten those of us who were here to hear them
on some of the views and the ways in which he has arrived at those
views of Mr. Gates,

Senator CRaNsTON, Thank you, Senator, very much.

Senator GORTON. And I do intend to follow up on some of those
questions. I guess the only other premise from which I would like
to start, Mr. Gates, is that unlike some of the earlier questioners in
this round, I believe that I have occasionally made the mistake
myself and come up with wrong answers or answers which proved
to be wrong in the light of history, And I may, even on occasion,
have ducked fully an unpleasant task. :

You have admitted to having that kind of experience in your life
on a couple of occasions, and I think that that puts you into that
huge mass of humanity most of whom hope that they have learned
from their experiences. From what I have heard so far in the last
two days, it seems to me that you have. And since I intend to vote
for your confirmation, and since I believe that you will be con-
firmed, I think that the direction that Senator Cranston went is
where I'd like to. I'd like to try to learn more about what you will
be like in the office of Director of Central Intelligence.

I have one specific follow-up with respect to a series of Senator
Cranston’s questions. He asked you about how you would try to
assure that you were not misled by some of your subordinates in
some future crisis. And T wonder whether or not there isn’t a fairly
significant addition to both his question and to your answer to if.

It is not the case that our examination of this whole Iran-Contra
affair, was it not unique, at least not the common course of action,
did you not have there a situation which you fervently hoped will
never occur on your watch as Director in which it was clear that
the position and the policies adopted by Congress were felt by the
Administration, right up to and including the President, to be pro-
foundly wrong and profoundly not in the interests of the United
States. So that you had many men and women, I suppose, in the
Administration and elsewhere who felt pulled in two different di-
rections, and were faced with very agonizing choices as to where
loyalties lay.

Is that not a situation which is relatively rare and is that not a
situation which would have to cause anyone who was DCI to be es-
pecially and particularly careful about whether or not he or she is
hearing everything? I fake it you wouldn’t expect in the normal
course of events, when the country was fairly united on a policy
and a direction to have people customarily lying to you in your
shop. Aren’t there some signals with respect to particular policies
which would lead to great caution?
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. Mr. GarEs. Yes, sir, Senator Gorton, I think that is absolutely
rue.

I think that this is the only instance in my government career
when I felt that beople perhaps hadn’t played straight with me. I
mean everybody in government is accustomned to shadings and poli-
tics and bureaucratic gamesmanship and that sort of thing.

But what appeared to be dishonesty was something that I had
not encountered, [ think it really did owe a lot to the deep divisions

feeling on the part of some officers as | indicated earlier that they
were sort of responding to a higher calling, if you will, when they
did not follow the rules,

I have—if we had not had a significant success in getting Soviet
troops out of Afghanistan and bringing about a negotiated solution,
or at least a hoped for negotiated solution in Angola, I would be
profoundly skeptical about the value of covert paramilitary action.
Iam hot aware of a single one since the founding of CIA that ever
remained a secret., And they have repeatedly embroiled the Agency
and the government in controversy and difficulty.

Now there may be exceptions, and I've just cited a couple, where

unlgvlse to use that kind of—that instrument of American foreign
policy.

Senator GortoN. You may have answered this question already,
but as you look back at the entire twenty-five years of your career
her.e, has there been any other instance to your knowledge in
which that kmd' of deep division has taken place and in which that
kind of temptation to go beyond the law has existed to any degree
or go the same degree that it did in connection with Central Amer.
ica’

Mr. GA}TES_. The only one that I can think of, Senator, was at the
very beginning of my career, and that was Vietnam. I don’t know
that anybody went beyond the law then, but there certainly were
those kinds of deep divisions.

_ Sqnatc_:r Gorton. Now I'd like to go back to another line of ques-
tioning in which Senator Cranston engaged that looks toward the
future and how you will dea) substantively with future challenges.
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Union, in the immediate future, the next three or four years, in
comparison with, say, the time since Gorbachev became President
or First Secretary and even the time before that. Is the fact that
there is more openness and for that matter, a much weaker central
government, does that give you such a broader opportunity to find
out not only the mood of the people but the actual economic cir-
cumstances, the defense circumstances in what remains of the
Soviet Union? Or is that so over-matched by the chaos and the lack
of leadership, that you are even less certain when you make analy-
ses of potential future changes in that country?

Mr. Gates. I think the right answer, Senator, is that it really
works both ways. In some areas, because of the change in the
nature of the government, I think that the people will be more
straightforward in dealing with the United States government. I
think there is a different attitude toward this government on the
part of the democratic leaders who have assumed positions of re-
sponsibility in the republics.

I also think the greater openness will provide us some of the op-
portunities that the Soviets have had in this society for so long.

At the same time, as you suggest, the fact that we now have to
think about fifteen capitals rather than one in the former Soviet
Union clearly is a complicating factor.

I think that the biggest complication though is the following. I
have a good friend who describes the information that policymak-
ers want to know as falling into two categories, Secrets and myster-
ies. :

Secrets are things that are ultimately knowable, stealable. You
can find them out. They exist. You can target them. You can go
after them.

- Mysteries are those things where nobody knows what the answer
is. And frankly, T think over the last number of weeks and in some
respects the last couple of years, the number of mysteries that we
are trying to cope with and trying to understand in the world is
increasing geometrically.

Senator GORTON. Fewer secrets and more mysteries?

Mr. Gartes. Exactly.

Senator GorTON. In that connection, and you did at least in part
answer this question to Senator Cranston, do you believe that the
dangers of some kind of nuclear accident, given the huge number
of warheads in what remains of the Soviet Union or what was the
Soviet Union, has increased in any measure comparable to the ob-
vious decrease or almost total loss of a thorough, thought out
Soviet government policy decision to use nuclear weapons?

In other words, is the possibility of some kind of nuclear acci-
dent—secrets have gone down and mysteries have gone up. What
about the balance there? Through all the years of the Cold War,
our concern was that someone might rationally take the decision in
the Soviet Union to begin a nuclear exchange. Now that’s almost
disappeared. But how much has the chance of an accident in-
creased?

Mr. Gates. I think that, without being an expert on it by any
means, my judgment, Senator, would be that the chances of an ac-
cident or the theft of a weapon actually has decreased. Because
over the past couple of years, the Soviets have taken—the Soviet
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military have taken—some important steps to consolidate the stor-
age of their nuclear weapons, to take them out of areas that are—
where there is a lot of conflict, where there is a particular danger
of some particular group or another trying to steal one of the weap-
ons. They have enhanced the security forces around most of their
facilities as far as we can tell.

So I would make the overall judgment—I may be wrong, but it is
my judgment—that if anything the weapons are probably some-
what more secure today than they were perhaps two or three years
ago, just because of a heightened sensitivity to their vulnerability.

Senator GorToN. This morning, there was at least an implied
criticism for a shift in priorities on the part of the CIA in late 1988,
You now must be in the process of going through a determination
as to how to shift that priority.

Could you outline for me whether or not you think the need for
intelligence, both as to intentions of present governments and the
stability of those present governments has increased or decreased
in other important parts of the world. I guess I sort of ask you to
start with the People’s Republic of China and perhaps some of the
other East Asia nations which have not shared in the reforming
fervor of the Soviet Union. And then maybe speak to the same sub-
ject with respect to the Middle East, to Iraq particularly, but to
any other government there to which you think the gquestion might
apply.

Mr. Gares. I certainly would agree with the premise of the ques-
tion in terms of the importance of additional information and anal-
ysis on the remaining closed societies in the world. The number is
dwindling. And I think that they probably feel increasingly threat-
ened.

And the question is whether they will respond to this heightened
sense of vulnerability by change and reform or by resistance and
taking actions that are contrary to our interests and our perception
of their interests. )

In those conditions, clearly understanding better of what's going
on inside China and particularly in the leadership, in Vietnam, in
North Korea—North Korea is a particularly troublesome example
where you have a totally closed society, one that has some disturb.
ing developments in its own nuclear program. So that I think these
are all areas that we have to pay a lot of attention to. .

Clearly, Iraq is—continues to be a very serious problem. There is
no—we find ourselves—or I find myself looking on amazed that
Saddam Hussein does not seem to have learned anything as a
result of the war. And he continues to cheat, he continues to try to
obstruct the U.N. Inspectors. When his hand is called, he concedes
Jjust enough to get himself out of a corner and then turns right
around and cheats again. His actions toward his own people
haven't changed. _

So as long as he is there, that is clearly going to be an important
target for American intelligence in terms of trying to find out what
is going on. .

Chairman BoreN. I think we are going to have to stand in recess
for about fifteen minutes or a little longer. Now, Senator Gorton,
do you have additional questions?

Senator GorTon. I think I may.
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Chairman BorenN. We will return after these three votes at ap-
proximately 3:00 o’clock. We will continue with Senator Gorton
and then Senator DeConcini will be the next questioner.

[A recess was taken from 2:45 o’clock p.m. until 3:26 o’clock p.m.]

Chairman BorenN. We will come back to order. I remind the
nominee he remains under oath.

Does the nominee reeall that?

Mr. GATES. Yes sir.

Chairman Boren. While I am waiting for my colleagues to
arrive, there are 2 or 3 questions for the record that I would like to
address to you that relate to the Iran-Contra matter from the point
of view of my responsibilities institutionally to the Committee. I
was not able to complete in my opening round so let me, as we are
waiting for other Members to appear, ask those questions.

The statement of the government in the Fiers plea bargain
agreement states, in essence, that on October 9th, 1986, Clair
‘George ordered Alan Fiers to limit his testimon‘y to the Senate For-
eign Relations Committee in order to, quote, “Not turn the spot-
light on activities of the NSC Staff.” At 6:30 p.m. on that afternoon
of October 9th, the day before the testimony 1s to be given, Director
Casey’s schedule shows that he met with you, Clair George, Alan
Fiers, and your Congressional Affairs Officer, David Gries, to dis-
cuss the testimony the following day. Do you recall that meeting?

Mr. GaTes. No sir, I do not.

Chairman Boren. Do you recall whether there was any direction
at all, either at that meeting or at any other time, by Mr. Casey or
any suggestion by Clair George that the testimony should be limit-
ed in order to not turn the spotlight on the Administration?

Mr. GaTes. I have no recollection of any such thing, Mr. Chair-
man,

Chairman BoREN. As far as you can remember that phrase was
not used in your presence in regard to the Fiers testimony?

Mr. Gates. No sir, and I believe that if it had been, I would re-
member.

Chairman BoreN. Fiers’ plea bargain agreement also says that
before this meeting, he'd called Colonel North and asked him if the
Hasenfus plane was one of his. North confirmed that it was. And
at this meeting on October 9th, with George, Fiers or at any other
time, did Mr. Fiers or Mr. George tell you that the Hasenfus plane
was one of Ollie’s?

Mr. Gares. No sir.

Chairman BoreN. Did you discuss this at this meeting or any
other meeting that you can recall with Mr. Fiers, what he thought
North had been doing?

Mr. Gares. No sir, I don’t have any such recollection.

Chairman Boren. Why wouldn’t” you have discussed with Mr.
Fiers whether or not he had any suspicions about what Colonel
North was doing?

Mr. Gates. Again, Mr. Chairman, my attention was focused to
the degree that I'd had contacts with Mr. Fiers on the future pro-
gram, and I was simply focused again, the questions had been
raised in the press and by the Congress on the 9th had to do with
Hasenfus’ claim that he had thought he had been working for some
CIA people. And so my focus was wholly on ensuring that CIA had
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not been involved in any way with that operation. As I was really
focused more on the question that was being posed at that point by
the press and the Congress in response to specifically what Mr. Ha-
senfus had alleged.

Chairman BoreN. Let me ask you again. Do you remember Mr.
Fiers or Mr. George ever coming to you and telling you that they
suspected that this plane was one of Ollie North’s planes?

Mr. Gatss. I have no such recollection, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman BorgeN. The other question is this. The Committee in-
terrogatories asked about a memorandum for the record relating to
a meeting with Admiral Poindexter that you wrote on July 11,
1986. The memo said you raised the subject of a CIA officer named
Vince Cannistrarc remaining at the NSC staff as Poindexter had
requested.

Mr. GatEs. Yes sir.

Chairman BoreN. Now your memo stated, and let me quote from
it, “'I also repeated our concern that should Vince take over the
Central American account, that he have nothing to do as a CIA
employee with the private sector people Ollie had been dealing
with in support of the Contras.” :

Do you remember that?

Mr. GaTes. Yes sir.

Chairman Boren. The Committee asked you what you under-
stood North's role to be vis-a-vis the private benefactors and your
response states on page 34, and I quote your response, “My under-
standing was that Lieutenant Colonel North spent some of his time
and effort encouraging private citizens to donate money to the Con-
tras, and I assumed that he had a role in putting those two groups
together with one another.” '

Was that the extent of your understanding of North’s relation-
ship with the private Contra resupply operation?

Mr. GaTtzs. Yes sir,

Chairman BoreN. In your deposition for the Iran-Contra Com-
mittees you replied to a similar question. You testified as follows
regarding Colonel North, and I quote your testimony, ‘Most of
what I knew, I knew from allegations in the newspapers. My un-
derstanding of what he was doing at the time was that he was basi-
cally holding the hand of resistance leaders, offering them political
advice, and staying in touch with them. That he was encouraging,
with presumably others in the White House, encouraging private
Americans to donate money to the Contras. And I presume that he
had a role in putting these two groups in touch with one another.”

You were asked specifically about your knowledge as of the time
of the October 1986 hearings of the Hasenfus flight. Question:
“Were you aware of any connection between North and the private
benefactors as of October 1986, other than North's general involve-
ment with fund raising?” I quote your answer, “Mr. Gates: In an
advisory capacity no, certainly not in an operational sense.’ " )

You have also testified in your answers to us, perhaps it was in
your written interrogatories, that you asked Colonel North at one
point at the lunch in the Director’s office on October 9th, whether
or not there was any CIA involvement in the private resupply oper-
ation. Do you remember my asking you that gquestion?

Mr. Gartes, Yes sir.
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Chairman Boren. Well my question to you is this. If, as you have
indicated to us, you had no belief that Colonel North was acting in
an operational capacity, or operationally directing the operation,
but rather merely in an advisory, fund raising, hand-holding, put-
ting-people-together capacity, would then you have asked Colonel
North whether there was any CIA involvement in an operation?

Mr. GaTes. I had already asked our operations officers, I think

- Mr. George, whether CIA had had any connection and I had re-
ceived a negative answer.

I was trying to cross every ‘t’ and dot every V' and I knew that
Mr.—Colonel North was in touch with the private benefactors and
I was just pursuing a long shot that perhaps one of these people
had said something about a proprietary or something like that that
might give some indication or that he might have heard about.
There was nothing more to it than that.

Chairman Boren. It did not reflect a suspicion on your part that
he was more deeply involved in operations and, therefore, he could
give you an educated answer to your question?

Mr. Gares. No sir. Mr. Chairman, in some respects my views of
that were shaped by having served on the National Security Coun-
cil myself under three different Presidents by that time. I worked
on the NSC under who I would regard as the three most powerful
National Security Advisors in post-war history—Kissinger, Brze-
zinski, and Scowcroft—the idea that a junior NSC staffer would be
involved in the kind of thing that later was revealed, frankly,
was—totally amazed me.

Chairman Bore~. Thank you very much,

I see Senator Gorton has returned. In your absence I had two or
three more questions for the record to close out the items I had
raised in my preliminar questions on behalf of the Committee.

Let us return now, S);nator Gorton, to the completion of your
questioning.

Senator Gorton. Unfortunately, my last question was a rather
long and involved one and as I remember, Mr. Gates got through
his assessment, brief assessment, of China, North Korea and the
like, and he may have said something about Iraq as well.

Did you finish and say everything that you wanted to in response
to my question about what you thought the dynamics in both the
East Asia and Southeast Asia were?

Mr. GaTEs. Yes sir, I think so.

Senator GorTON. Okay. My next question then would relate to
your present assessment of the danger of terrorism.

Obviously, while Americans and others were deeply concerned
about wide-spread terrorism during the war with Irag, it did not
take place. It seems to have lessened throughout the world fairly
steadily during the course of the last decade.

With these profound and tremendous changes of the world, will
you find it necessary to keep an equal attention paid to potential
terrorism or do you think that something profoundly has changed
which undercuts the base for that kind of activity?

Mr. GaTes. Two points in response, Senator. First, I think that
the relative absence of terrorism in the period before, during and
after the war with Iraq is one of the great success stories of CIA.
The agency had a remarkable amount of information on people

who they thought—Iragis abroad that they thought had terrorist
connections or that might be involved in helping facilitate terrorist
operations. This information served as the basis for a' number of
overtures to foreign governments. Many people were expelled from
the countries in which they were resident at the time due to the
information that CIA provided. And I think that this is a real suc-
cess for them in terms of the war.

So I think that the objective information was that actually there
was a fair amount of terrorist activity during that time and the
Agency was unusually effective in being able to thwart it or pre-
vent it.

The second consideration is that T think we came to a greater ap-
preciation of the degree to which these terrorist organizations are
subject at least to the influence of some of the governments in the
Middie East. And the fact that those governments were sympathet-
ic to our objectives in the war, I think led to them taking a role in
helping to inhibit some of those terrorist activities.

So I think we have to face reality in terms of the potential influ-
ence of some of those governments in terms of our policy as well.

Senator GORTON. And one other question, as part of the world
with which both our government and many Americans have con-
cern, Scutheast Europe, the Balkans. Are you relatively satisfied
with the degree of our ability to obtain intelligence, specifically in
Yugoslavia. Were you able to foresee in any respect the terrible
events which are going on there now? And are you relatively con-
tent with the amount of attention we pay to others of those newly
liberated from communism nations? And are you concerned about
any of them turning into a Yugoslavia?

Mr. GartEs. Senator, 1 think Yugoslavia is another success story
for the Intelligence Community. They published an estimate two or
three years ago forecasting precisely the kind of developments in
Yugoslavia that have in fact taken place. It was an estimate that I
think was, at least in general terms, absolutely on the mark.

When it comes to Yugoslavia and that area, I must say that I am
almost more tempted to turn to my history books than to my brief-
ing books, because the events and the fragmentation and the ethnic
conflicts—what we are seeing in the Soviet Union and Yugoslavia
and some of these other places is in effect a resumption of history.
A history that was interrupted in 1914 and then by the revolution
in Russia in 1917 and frozen in place by Communism in the post-
war period. And so all of these old antagonisms are coming to the
fore again.

I don’t think anybody can be optimistic about the future for
Yugoslavia right now. And there clearly are separatist feelings in a
lot of different countries. The Macedonians just had a referendum,
I think a week ago, saying that they wanted to be independent.
Well, that affects Greece, Bulgaria, and all these old conflicts
coming back to the present.

I think the Community has done a pretty good job of focusing on
those conflicts and in terms of being prepared to deal with the ten-
sions and the stresses that are coming about. I wish that our policy
options in terms of how to try and help cope with these problems
were as good and as valid as the intelligence we have been getting
on them.
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They are very tough situations.

Senator GortoN. Mr. Gates, and Mr. Chairman, I think maybe 1
will stop while 1 am ahead and while at least with me you are
ahead, Mr. Gates. In all of my talks during the course of the last 2
or 3 weeks I have been calling communism collective cryogenics—
you come out of it in exactly the form you went in, and we are
seeing history repeated.

Mr. Chairman, thank you.

Chairman BoreN. Thank you very much, Senator Gorton. We
will turn now to Senator DeConcini for his rounds of questions.

Senator DEConcint. Mr. Chairman, Mr. Gates thank you for your
time and thoughtfulness. I have been listening to some of the ques-
tioning here that you have given to Committee Members. Indeed it
is helpful to have you expound on your reasoning even if we
happen to disagree with it. It helps me to understand how some of
these things occurred. One of the things that occurred and one of
the things that I am very concerned about and maybe you can shed
some light on it, and maybe it is a practical part of being a Deputy
Director or the head of intelligence; the issue that is constantly
being raised is the politicizing, or as has been said so many times,
cooking the intelligence or massaging it to come out in the manner
that somebody else wants—usually a superior or somebody at the
White House. As I said in my opening statement, this country has
spent hundreds of billions of dollars to develop what I believe 1s the
most sophisticated intelligence gathering operation in the world
and yet there seems to be this politicization problem, maybe you
can shed some light on it.

President Bush wrote in his autobiography, and I quote from my
opening statement, “The CIA director should go out of his way to
avoid even the appearance of getting involved in any policy
making. The Agency’s sole duty outlined its 1947 chapter 1s to fur-
- nish intelligence data to the President and other policymakers.”
You have written on this issue yourself in a Foreign Affairs maga-
zine called The CIA and American Foreign Policy, 1987-88. You
wrote, and I quote, “There is no charge to which those in the CIA
are more sensitive than that of cooking intelligence or slanting its
reports to support policy. Therefore it is important to understand
the distinctions between personal and institutional views. National
Intelligence Estimates are reviewed and coordinated by a dozen
agencies. CIA assessments are widely reviewed inside the agencies
but almost never, ever seen by the Director before being published
and circulated.” '

My first question deals with a 1984 incident where a National In-
telligence Estimate on Mexico was put together for the Agency by
John Horton. He has been contacted by our staff. Mr. Horton pays
vou high compliments, I might say, in your total observance of the
position. Mr. Horton was in charge of drafting an intelligence eval-
uation among the United States Intelligence Community on
Mexico. At the time of this incident, you were serving at the
Agency as the Deputy Director of Intelligence and the Chairman of
the National Intelligence Council. Is that correct?

Mr. GaTes. Yes, sir. ]

Senator DeEConcint. I just want to be sure that I am talking to
the right person here.
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Mr. GATEs. Yes, sir.

Senator DEConcin. At then Director Casey’s request, Horton as-
signed an analyst to prepare that NIE on Mexico. The draft on
Mexico included the statement, quote, “One in five chance that
during the next few years internal and external pressures would
result in a political destabilization of Mexico”. Horton disagreed
with the estimate because it could not be substantiated by intelli-
gence, so he tells us, while Director Casey was supportive and he
pushed for these findings in the final draft. It has been conveyed to
us that Horton took his complaints to you on 2 different occasions
in regard to the draft estimate, but to no avail. The NIE on Mexico
was printed and included the 1-in-5 predictions which Horton dis-
agreed with, as did the State Department, DIA, Army, Air Force,
and Marines. Mr. Horton, as I said, expressed a lot of respect for
you, and wasn’t necessarily fingering you out. He related to us how
this report came out and how his concerns were ignored.

Nevertheless, I would like to know more about your personal
opinion and your personal involvement with this activity, If I can
refer to the draft Mexico Intelligence Estimate and what steps that
you took regarding this, and did John Horton come to you and dis-
cuss his concerns with the draft Intelligence Estimate on Mexico?
Do you recall?

Mr. GaTEs. Yes sir. The origin of that estimate was the travel of
a long-time CIA analyst and specialist on Latin America to Mexico.
iI_‘his analyst had worked for the Agency for some 20 years I be-

ieve.

He visited places in Mexico where our embassy usually didn’t cir-
culate very often. He got to the suburbs of Mexico City, he traveled
elsewhere in the country-side, and he came back and wrote an
essay thfit was as you suggest, very pessimistic about the prospects
for Mexico. He was very pessimistic about whether the PRI, the
Mexican Revolutionary Party, had the old strengths that it had
had, and so on.

He and the NIO disagreed on the seriousness of the problem.
Again this is a very senior analyst that we are talking about. He
was, I think at that time, perhaps even chairman of the analytic
group, the small group of analysts that work for the National Intel-
ligence Council.

My understanding, or my recollection of it is that that estimate
went through 4 drafts before it ever left the National Intelligence
Council. And when it reached Mr. Casey, Mr. Casey’s primary con-
cern—he knew the analyst from some work he had done on Castro,
had a lot of respect for him—and he was worried that a new and
disturbing analysis was being ground down into oatmeal by a con-
ventional wisdom. And that the challenge to the conventional
wisdom was slowly being erased in the process of the coordination
of the draft.

In the event that draft ultimately went through, or that piece of
paper, went through 9 different drafts. A new key judgments was
drafted at one point. The analyst and the NIQ, there was a great
deal of antagonism there. I think it is fair to say that Mr. Casey
did not treat the NIO with kid gloves. It was a fairly rough and
tumble process. But the ultimate product was an estimate where
although the agencies that you have mentioned took a footnote dis-
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agreeing with the primary conclusion, I think that there were five
or six agencies that concurred in the estimate.

Senator DeConcint. Could be.

Mr. GATES. And because of the stories in the newspapers about
this, the House Intelligence Committee examined this issue in late
1984 or early 1985. And they issued a report in which in essence
they concluded that there had been no slanting of intelligence and
in fact applauded the fact that on the first page of the estimate,
the disagreement within the Community and presentation of alter-
native views had taken place.

Senator DeConcint. Well did Horton bring to you his concerns a
couple of times or more?

Mr. Gates. I am sure that he probably did.

Senator DEConcini. And did you give them your professional
consideration or did you pretty much dismiss them?

Mr. GaTes. I think that there is one account that—in an inter-
view that he made, or that—in something I've read, where I really
don’t remember, but there is one account that says that I offered a
compromise to him, that I tried to broker a compromise between
him and the analyst and others involved in the process and that
didn’t work either and we ended up with the product that we had.

Senator DECoNcCINI. Is that correct? That you did try to get a
compromise?

Mr. Gates. My recollection is that there is something like that,
yes sir,

Senator DEConciNi. Well, as Deputy Director, were you the pri-
mary person responsible for ensuring that the intelligence esti-
mates were what they finally came out at?

Mr. GaTes. It was my responsibility, yes sir, to ensure that the
alternative views were taken into account.

Senator DEConcINL Did you raise the concerns of Horton's and
others with Casey when you delivered this to him?

Mr. GaTes. Oh, yes sir. It was a major battle in the Agency.

Senator DECoNcCINI. And what was Mr. Casey’s position, just out
of curiosity? Was he bent on one direction or another?

Mr. GaTes. He had been reading in the open literature some
books or something about Mexico and he too had become very pes-
simistic about the prospects. And I think it was in that vein that
when he received the analyst’s essay that he was struck by it and
sympathetic to it.

But my primary recollection is that his concern was that the con-
ventional wisdom that everything was going to be all right, every-
body relax, not be washed out of the estimate. That was the pri-
mary concern that I recall him having.

Senator DeCoNcINI. Are you satisfied you did everything, Mr.
Gates, to be sure that this final draft and estimate was not slanted
in a way that Mr. Casey or somebody else wanted it?

Mr. Gates. I am comfortable that the draft—that the estimate
that was published—represented fairly the views of those involved
in the process. I probably could have done more to make the proc-
ess a little smoother and a little less abrasive. -

Senator DECoNINI. I looked at one of these reports in the last
couple of days and it deals with another area I want to talk about,
in the area of Mexico, and that’s the increased participation of the
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U.S. Intelligence Community in the war on drugs. You mentioned
that in your opening statement to some extent.

There are a number of law enforcement people that raise the
question about the CIA’s mission here, whether or not they can
really be constructive or not. I have a problem with it, and maybe
you can help me. The reason for law enforcement’s lack of confi-
dence is mainly CIA’s work in Mexico, and its failure in this 1984
report to delve into the corruption and the drug dealing within the
special police, DFS. And of course its dealing with Manuel Noriega.
We will get to that later—maybe in the closed session.

In your opening statement, you single out the international drug
cartels. I was pleased to hear that because I think it's important
that it really be on the mind of the CIA Director. However, during
the exact time when the Mexican drug cartels were gaining power
and influence, the CIA in my observations, and I realize hindsight
is wonderful, really was doing very little in the drug area.

The 84 estimate on Mexico which of course was drafted and dis-
seminated when you were the Deputy Director, totally ignored the
growing power and influence of drug trafficking organizations, and
the massive corruption within that society and within that govern-
ment.

For years here, Senator D’Amato, Senator Helms, now Governor
Wilson and myself were fighting the certification of Mexico that
the Reagan Administration kept sending up.

These concerns were ignored and maybe they were ignored be-
cause the CIA was not giving the Administration any information.
At least in their 84 estimate they didn’t give any information about
it that I can find.

It was very clear then and now that the Colombia drug cartels
were deeply involved in Mexico. I believe things could be different
today in our efforts to fight the war on drugs if the CIA had em-
phasized what some of us thought was very clear.

As the Deputy Director in 84, why did the 84 Mexico Intelligence
Estimate not mention, not even mention narcotics and the growing
influence of drug trafficking organizations in the Mexican govern-
ment? Do you know?

Mr. Gares. No sir, I don’t The only thing that I can say to you I
think is that I think CIA did come late to the narcotics problem. I
think that, beginning in the mid 80’s, we began devoting the kind
of resources to it that the problem required and the creation of the
Counternarcotics Center two or three years ago, I think three years
ago, to bring a focus to the problem. But I would acknowledge that
we came late to the problem.

I also know that there has been friction over time between CIA
and law enforcement agencies in terms of the intelligence that CIA
collected, because the law enforcement agencies want to use that
information in court. They want to use it to prosecute people. And
there is a concern in CIA, naturally, for the protection of sources
and methods. And to be able to prosecute that would require re-
vealing the sources and methods. And there has been a tugging on
that and I think that they have made some headway in working
out ways to deal with that problem.

Senator DeConcint. Let's talk about that problem for a moment.
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You know as the CIA Director or the Deputy Director, if indeed
your mission is to gather intelligence information on drug cartels,
and if you give it to the DEA and they want to go after somebody
and use it, you are in the position of saying, wait a minute, we've
got to protect the source here. Isn'’t it really up to the Justice De-
partment to decide whether you can burn this source? Don't you
have an obligation, if this is your mission, to convey that informa-
tion to law enforcement and then let the Justice Department
decide whether or not they are going to use any of that informa-
tion in the prosecution? .

It really troubles me that you are in contradiction with exactly
what your mission is. Because when you have a good source, you
don’t want to tell DEA about it or another law enforcement
agency, such as Customs, because you are afraid that it might be
exposed. It seems to me to be a contradiction that has to be re-
solved by the Attorney General, who is the person who decides who
to prosecute and what information to use. He is surely going to
listen to the head of the CIA.

How do you feel that should play out?

Mr. Gartes. Well, I certainly feel that all of the information
should be shared with the law enforcement authorities. I think
that the question of what happens to a source is something where
the DCI would have special concerns. These people are recruited,
engage in a relationship, provide information, and for the United
States unilaterally to put their lives in jeopardy when they have
provided this information, I think is a serious matter. And that’s
the issue that comes up when questions of going to prosecution
occur,

And that becomes inherently difficult. It’s a process that I cer-
tainly wouldn’t have any problem working at through a dialogue
with the Attorney General. But I think one does have to be awfully
careful about a unilateral decision to expose a source that— —

Senator DeCoNcINI. I can appreciate that, but do you think that
the reason that this drug information was left out back in the 84
Estimate was the fact either, one, that the Agency wasn’t up to par
and up to speed on it, or two, that in fact, the Agency was deeply
involved with the DFS organization in Mexico and didn’t want to
disclose what was really going on?

Mr. Gares. [ think that it—from my standpeint as Chairman of
the National Intelligence Council and Deputy Director for Intelli-
gence, I would say it was the first reason.

Now it may be that the second reason had to do with why the
analysts didn’t have more information about it that would then
lead them to take the problem more seriously. But I think that the
gnalysts were not trying to protect anybody or cover up for any-

ody.

Senator DECoNciNi. Well, let me ask you then, Mr, Gates. If you
are confirmed here as the Director, how much priority are you
going to place on narcotics information gathering—say on Mexico?
In the next report that has your name on it, that you disseminate
here, is it really going to tell everything the Agency knows about
the narcotics problems, even if it involves some sources and meth-
ods that you will have to deal with if anybody wants to use for
prosecution purposes? That’s what I am interested in.
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Mr. Gartes. First, Senator, I would—I think that narcotics has to
be one of the Agency’s top priorities,

Second, I think that any analysis that—or assessments that deal
with Mexico or other countries are going to have to deal very
graphically and in detail with the role of narcotics traffickers and
the political system. And I think that the Agency has done a pretty
good job of that in countries like Colombia and Peru and else-
where. We need to make it— —

Senator DEConcint. Well, quite frankly if you read the reports
on Colombia and Peru, and 1 have, it really gets into it. If you read
the report on Mexico, and I am no analyst, but I know enough
about Mexico and I know enough about law enforcement intelli-
gence briefings that at least in the 84 report, it didn’t put it in.

I am not saying that you are to fault because what has happened
has happened. You admitted yYou made mistakes and I admire any-
body that can do that. [ certainly have made my share. What trou-
bles me is what are we going to do in the future. How are you
going to be able to convince at least this Senator—maybe no one
else cares—that by God, even if it’s a problem with the internation-
al community to tell the whole truth about the narcotics problem
with a good friend like Mexico, we are going to do it because those
who have the right to know, and the need to know, have got to
have that information. They didn’t get it from the CIA in the 84
report.

Mr. GATEs. Again, Senator, I believe that the reason was that we
simply didn’t take the problem seriously enough at that time. I can
assure you that any assessments of that kind I think in recent
times and in the future would be Just as candid as the facts re-
quire.

Senator DeConciNT, Well, do you have any realignment or ideas
of what you are going to do in the CIA if and when you are con-
firmed as to how you are going to change this so that it doesn't
happen again? Is there some problem that you know that could be
addressed so that this wouldn't happen again?

Mr. Gares. I think that with the creation of the Counternarcotics
Center and the broader availability of the information, that it will
come to the attention of the analysts and can be incorporated in
these estimates. And [ believe that the work that has been done on
some of the other Latin American countries would bear that out.
And I certainly would pay special attention to it.

Senator DECoNcINI. Let me Just point to another area and I don'’t
know for a fact, but there are some reports that Syria has been in-
volved in narcotics trafficking through Lebanon, 